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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

GENERAL INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANTEA Cement Sh.A. is an investment with the highest standards applied in terms of construction and
aperation in Albania and & tolal value exceeding 200 milion Euro. The company is conlralled by
ALVACIM LTD, which has 100% shareholding in the Company. The Company's ullimate parent is Tikan
Cement International S A, (hereiafter referred as “Titan Group")

Antea Cement was awarded (he right for land usage and mining exploitation by the Albanian
Govermment for 99 years. The plant was constructed by CBMI Construction Co, a Chinese construction
company. Under the supervision of Titan Group which implemented the highest sabely slamdards
applicatle, the project was completed on time, wilhin the forecasted budget and with zero accidens,

AMTEA Cemant has a production capacily of 1.4-milion-ton cerment annually and 3.300-ton clinker per
day. The plant is located al “Boka & Kuge®, Borizane which is 50 km away from Tirana, capial city of
Afbanka,

Antea Cament Sh.A. [hereinafter referred as the "Company” or "Antea”) and its subsidiaries
{herginafter referred as the “Group” or “Consolidated Antea®)

The Company has fwo fully owned (100%) subsidianes a5 1080w
ALBA CEMENTO shpk

Alba Caments Shpk owns and oparates a cement terminal operating in Tikana. Such ferminal is made
available to Artes Cement and provides logistic senvices to the later. The company praparas and
quimits &= financial statemants in sccording 1o respective legislation in Albania. All revenues generated
ty the company are generated from the logists services provided to Antea Cement,

CEMENTI ANTEA §RL —ltaly

The main activity of the subsidiary is trading cement exporied from Anlea Cement through a rentad
terminal in Orfona, Haly. The company sells the cement exported from Afbania to the falian Market and
ils main revenoes arg derived from this activily.

W

The helow infarmation i provided in complianse willt the previgions of amnd reguirameris of the faw o
Agoouniing and Financial raporing No Z5/2018 Dated 10052018,

Wi

Beside the information provided in this document the company prepares and publishes in s wabsite
an Integrate Annual Report which provides more detalied information aboul its inlegrated operations.

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

Antea Cement is one of the major cement producess in Alkania, with a plant, abke lo complele the entira
technological process of transformation from raw materials fo the final product. The Company through
the technology installed in jis plant can produce baoth Clinker and Cement.

Clhinker is & semi-product preducad by the Company which can further be utilized by Antea Cement in
the cement production o il can be sold to other companies for production of cement, whereas tha final
product is camant of different types.

The company sells its prodict in the domestic market as well as exports itin the Intesnational market.



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ECONOMIC AND OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

2019 was characterized by a siable and solid performance for Antea Cement and ils subsidsaries. Below
wiz have reviewad the main operations of Antea Cement Sh.A. on a consolidated leved (herein referred
as "Consolidated Amtes” or "Consolidated*). Antea Cement, addressed successiully the challenges of
cement dermand bath in the domestic and export markets and capitalized its resull on such demand

Al the same tme, ANTEA remained focused on the enduring objective of balanced, responsible and
sustainable long-lerm growth, embracing change as an organization and innovating at an accelerated
pace. Below are shown some of the key financlal indicators by comparing the current reporting period
bo the previous reporling period.

Briefy below you may find some of thi main Economic Indicators of the companty.

Financial Performance Highlights Consolidatad Antes
Amounts in 000 ALL 2019 2018
Gansolidaled Sales of Products 6,420,830 | 5,726,635 |
Consalidated Cperating Profit B5A.850 | 446,528
Gonsolidated EBITDA 1,918,377 | 1,317,973
Cansolidalbed Profit before tax . 645,866 |  T18.451
| Consoidated Net profil 533,226 508,314

During 2019 Consolidated revenues from salas of products were increased by ALL 692,195 thousand
or 12% vs prior year, Oul of ALL 6,420,830 thousand of revenues from Sales of Product 64% s
derived from sales in Damestic Market and 36% from sales in Export Markets. Main markets where the
company is exporting are in the neighboring countries and in the Mediterransan Region.

Consolidated Operating Profil increased by ALL 512,324 thousand or 116% vs prior year, thus
contribufing in an incréase of the Consolidaied EBITOA va prior year by ALL G00,204 thousand as
alzo indicated in the Mote 32 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis,

Consolidated Profit Before Tax For the year amounied to ALL 645,866 thousand which was lower than
previous year by ALL 72,585 thousand, mainly affecied by the Met Finance Cost which this year
resufled in net cost due to lower FX Gain versus prior year, More details are provided in the notes 1o
the conaclidatad financkal statements.

The above consolidated operation resulls coupded with the movamant in the: company's working capilad
lad to a Consolidated Met Cash Flow from Dperating aclivities in the amoum of ALL 1,427.574
thousand which was ALL 288 514 thousand less compared to prior year, Nevertheless, the company
utilized these resources 1o invest in new Gapex in the Amount of ALL 245,413 thousand and have Net
Cash Flow used in repaying borrowings in the amount of ALL 1,054,108 thousand during the period.
The company closed the financial year in a salisfaciory and stable liquidity posiion.

In terms of technical performance, operation of the production line during 2018 followed the demand
paltern for the company's product while focusing on oplimization of slocks and working capital through
the year. The production line has been performing at very high reliakility levels ensuring proper delivery
of products bolh to domestic and expon markets especially during periods of high demand, adequabely
capluring all the opportunifies available.

In terms of Health and Safety the company continusd with the Implementation of ils own good praclices
fram previous years for the purpose of further developing its everall health and safely perfarmance. In
adddion, it introduced guidelines and methodologies which ane Implemented by TITAN Group. Raising
the health and safety awareness \hrough culture development and accepfing the heallh and safaty
requirements as “normal’ part of the job are crucial precondilions for building a sustamable healh and
safely system. Direct and interactive trainings is one &f the most favorabla tooks for raising awareness
and learning. Thus, cur employees had 2,888 hours of trainings in the area of Heallh and Safely.



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ECONOMIC AND OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

In 2019, the company has shown efforts in being part and conlributing in various successiul Initiatives
held in Tirana regarding CSR in partnership andfor collaboration with insfitutions and embassies. The
company conlinued to actively implement fis C5R developrnent programe, by crafling initiathves &5 per
the local community needs as wedl as Involving and suppading ils stakeholders. Main initiatives i lozal
communily includes “Leaming Cormputer Literacy and Foreign Languages’, "Safety 4 Kiks", *Changing
Inpgiane biahaviors on the schools® el

ANTEA has been in the forefront to contribule immediately afer the earthiuske that hit Albania on
Movernher 2019 by providing for the local communily help on services, logistics, offering warm food far
the: affecied families and helping the local authorifies with emergency needs as per thelr requests. The
reconstrection of damages in Thumana's school, was ane of the main projects, making it safe to oparate
again.

Furtharmore, ANTEA has donated cemant for various municipaities in Albania o help them n thesr chvil
projects on deteriorated and rehabilitalions of roads, restaralions/constructions of local hauses and
schools. Nevertheleas, ANTEA cantinues o engage in promoting CSR standards and best praclices in
Iha country, by organizing conferences and meetings wilh Instituions, Universities, Organizations and
MWGCE and leading the CER approach,

The environmeantal parformance of ANTEA is monitared and reviewed throughou! the enfire year. The
review addresses accordingly and timaly all the materisl isaues of our operations. Since the beginning
of its operation, AMTEA has been ewering its activity in accordance 1o 150 14001 envirenmental
managemant system cedified by independent hird pary, The carfification covers the guality and he
adequacy of all applicable systems enforced lo control and reduce alr emissions, quarry rahahilitation
and landscape aspects, groundwaler, wedls and wastewaler aspecis, liquid and sofid wasle, nalural
resoufces & energy consurnplicn, noise and ofher emvronmental aspects. The company is fully
cormpliant with the applicable laws and legistations in ths respect,

People are cantral lo everything we do. The Human resources are the assel that drives fhe company
perdormance and elficiency. For eur company the priorily is to ensure a strong Employer — Employes
ralalion based on mulual inest and consistency in our conporale values and principles. We ara offering
a comprehensive, decent working environment respecting the health & safely conditions and human
rights.

We provide mechanisms that promote open and direct cormmunication with our employees. Wa are
offesing equal cpportundies beth to applicants and employees, not allowing amy fomm of discrimination
ratated to gender, nationally, race, refigion, famiy stalus or else and promoling transparency and
meritocracy. AMTEA Cement is the first compary i Albanka that has successfully implemented and has
bean cerified according o the Social Accountabllity 8000:2014 Standard (shorlly SAB000:2014), an
auditalie carfification slandard that encourages arganizations to develop, mainlain, and apply socially
acceptable practices in the workplace,

As ot 31 December 2018 the consolidated headeount of ANTEA at tha end of the year reached 193
pesple. During 2019 the Employee Benefit Expenses amounted to ALL 403,471 thousand as
exprained in the Note 13 to the consclidated financial Stalements.

The development of cur people i a responsibiily which helps us in retaining high-gualified personnet.
In Tralnings fields, in 2019, ANTEA confributed to the development of ow employees by providing
cantinusus training in technical and management skills. The focus of cur ralning (beyond what we
provided above under the chapter of Health & Safety) was to continua improvement of employees’ soft
skills regarding teamwork and team building, effective gommunication, presentation ek@lls, enhancing
their lechnacal knawledge and subsequent to that to promote company’s values. In tolal for 2008 3,013
hours of fraining were delivered to our employess.



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ECONGMIC AND OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
{CONTINUED)

a) Business risks

The major financial labiilies of the Camgany Include Interest beating loans, olher [Ebilities and lrade
payables. The primary target of these financial instrumants i thal fimancing of the aclivily of the
Company to be secured. The Company possesses financial assels, such as trade and other
recewablas, cash and cash equivalents, which ofigin derives from Ihe activity of the Company. The
major risks, that occur from the financial instruments of the Company are inlerest bearing risk, lguidity
risk, currency risk and credit risk. The policy applied by the Management of the Company, for
management of all (hese risks is summarized in Note 30 of the Conselidated Financial Statements.

h} Research and Development aclivity of the Company
The Company did not pedonm any activity, related wilh research and development in 2018,

¢] Disclosure for acquisition of own shares

The Compaty owns no shares of tha Company and had no such transactons in 2013,

d) Branches of the Company

The company has lwo subsidiaries as explained above which are fully consolidated In thesa
coneolidated financial statements. Aparn of that there ane no other branches.

a)] Palicies and Ohjective of managing financial risk, Expesure of the company towarls
Financial Risks & Risk Quantifications

Policies and Objectives for managing financial risks a8 well as the respeclive quantifications are
included in the Notes 4 and Note 30 o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

f| OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPANY FOR 2020
The company's objectives are set o achieve the following objectives for 2020

» Increase effecliveness of industrial parformance,
« Continue sarving i1s custamers in the domeslic and expart markels as well as be able 1o salisly any
additional demsnd in e markets.

» Sugtain the currenl financial results and seek areas of potential growth and on the same time
contain fixed costs.

REPORT OM INTERNAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
a) Gorporate Governanse

The Company is constituled as a joini stock company in compliance with the Commercial Law of the
Republic of Albanta and has @ wo-tier system of governance which is as follows:
«  The suparvisory council

s The Admmistralor/Genaral Manages
The supervisory board as at 31 Dec 2018 is comprised as follows:
« Chalrrman of the supanvisory counc, Mr. Konstantinos Derdemezis
o Narmber of the suparvisory councll, Mr, Fokion Tasoulas
= Mamber af (he supervisory council, Mr. Christes Panagopoulos
» Member of the supervisory councll, Mr. Loukas Petkidis

The superdsary council members are appointed from the shareholders General Assembly. The
members of the supervisory beard bring on board a valuable experiance of dilferent areas comprising
experlise on industrial, commarcial and financial ansas



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A,

REFORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ECONOMIC AND OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The Supervisary Boards appoint the administratorf General manager of the company. The General
Manager of the company is M, Mario Bracc,

b} Managing risks and opporlunities

ANTEA Cement has in place an Integrated Management System (IMS) which is comprised of three
management systems and one standard being:

« OHSAS 18001 for Occupationad Healih and Safety

e |50 14007 for Ermvironmesnl

o |50 9001 for Quality

«  SA 8000204 for Social Accountabilily

The managament leam of AMTEA Cement assesses the social, environmental, managerial and
financial rigks that the company can face in the framework of the challenges that are coming from Lhe
country, the ragion and further. The company manages 1he risks through:
] Infesnal  audits and Systems to keep in consistency with Managament Systems
raquirermants in place
s Creation of various commeliess in the company to address various chalenges and issues.

At ANTEA Cement, the foliowng Boards and Commiltess are created to address varlous chalenges
ard EsUs:

Quality Board:

The company’s management s involved in the Cually System through the Cuality Board, The
responsibilities of the Guality Board are the following:

¢ Establizhing the Company's Qualily Palicy

o  Adapting the Qualily Syatent's documents

«  Conducting the internal gqualily swdits

& Conducting reviews of the Quality System

s Satting qualily lasgets

Enviromnment Board:

M is responsible to idantily the emironmental aspects, to delermine the emergency siuations and the
need for preparation of emergency plans, fo review on annual basis the Environmental Management
System ele

Health & Safety Central Commitiee:

AMTEA HAS Central Committee provides sirategic and tachcal guidance for the improvement of
initiatives regarding safety and heallh al ANTEA plant. i establishes effeciive business processes to
promaote the full implementation of the TITAN's Group Health & Safely Policy. The Centrad Commilles's
Members must demonstrate visible leadership, personal commilment, active supper, actions'
accountabifity and tmely follow-through fof all safety programs.

The Social Accountabliity Board:

The Pland has also appointed a Social Accountabilly Board respensible to identify the social
accountabilty issuss, delermine the required preventive or coreclive aclions, and review on annual
basis the Socdal Accountability Management Sysbem ol
The Company has bean extensively trained in the most sensitive areas af Anli-bribery, Anti-corruplion
and Sanctions and has widely mcorporated in @5 conlractual redations wilth suppliers, customers and
partners relevant provisions to avoid ilegal implications.



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ECONOMIC AND OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Moreover, a confiict of interest policy has been adopied and a commilies responsible for clearing casas
of possible conflict of mterest has been established with the allendance of Company's lop managemant.
Fallowing up with the latest changes in the local legislation, the Company has elected and formalized
the Responsible Uinit in accordance with the Albanian Law on Waislleblowing which has carred a senes
of trainings and has disiributed the necessany materials to the employees aiming al miaking them awans
of their righls and obligatians in the event a cormuption case comes 1o their afbention,

c) Antea Values

ANTEAS's values slem diseclly from the principles, beliefs and vision rom its establishment back in
2006. They are the care elements in complance with TITAN's cullure and family spiil, providing the
foundations of the Group's cperations and growth, ANTEA Cemenl Sha is commilted o create walug
for its employees, the local communily, its suppliers and clients through strengthening tha cone valles,
applying ethical business practices having an open and conlinuous cammunication with all stakeholders
and addressing their most malerial issvas in a limely and proper manner Allhough the anvircament
whene the Company operates has its own chalkenges, Anles sirive lo be 2 responsitle company through
identilying the impast on the society and taking sclion to create valua lor ils stakeholders by minimizing
the adverse effects while increasing welfare and will being of its employees, focal communities and
business partners. Balow are presented the Company values:
s Infegrity: Elhical business practices, Transparency; Dpen communication
s Kiow-how: Enhancement of knowledge base; Proficlency in evary funclion; Excellence in
cafe compeiencies
o Walue to (he customer: Anticipation of customer needs; Innovalive sodulions; High qualily af
products and sendcas
Delivering resulls: Shareholder value: Clear objectives; High standards
Conlintous impovemeant. Learning organization; Willingness to change; Rise lo challenges
Comparale Social Responsibiily: Safety first, Sustainable development, Stakehodder
ergagement
Operating in the same line with Titan Group aiming 1o grow as a multiragionad, vertically integrated
cement producer, combining entreprensurial spiril and operational excellence with respect to ils people,
society and the environment, ANTEA fofows the Titan ohjectives transited inlo four strategc priorlies.
Gecgraphic diversification: Expanslon of the Company's business relatons through acquisitions and
greenfield developmants into atiractive new markets
Vertical intagration: Fxlension of the Company into other product areas in the cemant value chain
Confinuous competitive improvement; mplementation of new efficiencies 1o reduce costs and lo
compate more effectively
Focus on human capital and Coporate Social Responshilty: Development of employess and
continuous improvement of the Company’s good melationshipe with all imernal and external
slakehaldars.

d) Internal controls and risk management systems regarding financial reporting

The key elemenis of the system of intarnal controls utilized in order o avald errors in the preparation of
the consaolidated financial staternents and o provide refiable financial infarmation ara the fellowing:

- The assurance mechanism regarding the integrity of the Company's consolidated financial
stalements consists of @ combination of the embedded risk management processes, the
appliad financial conlrol activities, (he relevant information technology ulilized. and the financial
information prepared, communicated and monitored. Tha company preparas and raviews on a
maonthly basis financial and nondinencial data which is reviewsed by the company's
managameant on a penodical basis.

- The company ulilizes & full package SAP solufion Far menitoring its operational and
bookkeeping fransactions. Such sallware selution provides for the most secure and advanced
way of recording and reporting all the company's aclivities in an aocurate and correct way.
The Company engaged exdemal suditors to review the mid-year financial stalements of the
Cormpany and audit the full year congolidated fnancial statements of the aforementioned.

All the above ensure thal the consolidated financial statements of the company provide reliable and
accurabe informalion.

Wi



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

PAYMENTS MADE TO GOVERNMENTAL INSTITUTIONS

The below report is praparad in compliance with arlicle 21 of the Law on Accounting anil Financial

Stalementa Mo 252018 Dated 10.05.2018.

The lakbe below indicates the aciual cash payments made by Antea Cement sha (stamding alons) to fhe

authordles in Albania for the indcated type of laxes or categories as befow.

Armoisals are f 000ALL

| Payment type** 2019 |
+ Production Rights z
»  Paymenl of Taxes 85 per the Applicable Tax Legislation
Corporale ingome Lax 168 464
- Eocial and health insurance 55,263
= Personal income 1ax 31,408
- Carbon & Excise Tax 265 329
Local Taxes 1o Locs Authorities 21,554
#  Royalties 48476
o Dividends
« Payments for Subscriplions, Research and Praduction 2
s Tax and Tarifls and other payments Enkad with Licensas and
Concasslons
= Paymente for [nfrastructure Improvements. -
TOTAL 590,496

* Tha above amounis reprasent the actual cash payments made by the company during the calendar year

ending 31 Decambar 2018,

wil
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Independent Auditor’s Repor!
To the shareholder of ANTEA CEMENT SH.A:
Cur oplmian

In our opinion, the consclidated financlal statamants present fairly, in all material respects, the
consclidated financial position of ANTEA CEMENT SH.A, (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together — the “Group”) as at 31 December 2019, and its conaclidated fmancial performance and its
consolidated cash ficws for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Group's consolidaled financial statenents comprise:

« fthe consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
Decamber 2015,

+ {he consobdated statement of financial position as at 31 Decamber 2018
« the consolidated statement of changes in equily for the year then ended;
« the consolidatad statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e  the notes to the consolidated financial stalements, which include significant accounting policies
and ather explanatory informalion.

Basis for opinion

W conducted our audil in accordance with Intermationel Standards on Auditing (15AS). Cur
rasponsibilities under those slandards are furlher described in the Audifor's responsibliies for the
audit of he consolidated financhal slafamants section of our report.

We bielieve that the audit evidence we have obtzined is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

Wa are indapendent of the Group In accerdance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accourtants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
athical responsibiiiies in accordance with the IESBA Code,

Diher information

Manggamant i responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
Management's Reporl, the Business Activity Repord and Report on Payments made to Governmeantal
Instituticns (but dees not include the consolidated financlal statements and our auditar's report
thareon).

Our apinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do
not exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

PricawstrhouseCoapers Mt SHF K
Fus, [benhim Rugova, Sky Tower 041, Tirams, Albania
T: $350 (4] 2243 254, F-4355 (A) 2242 B30, v grave comisl

Fogrhand with e bl vl P tbeasion. Cenbre on 14 Julyt 3000 pred Wik Tua ikinbBea bas Bhaonbar FRIR KRIBLSDIEA
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

In cannection with our audit of the consolidated financtal statements, our responsiblity s to read the
other informalion identified above and, in doing 50, consider whether the other Information is materially
Incansistent with the consolidated financial stalermants or our knowledge ablained In the audit, or
otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performad, we concluda
that there is 8 material mésstatement of this ather information, we are required to report that fact, We
have nothing to repart in this regand.

Responsibilities of management and these charged with govemance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presestation of the consolidated financial
elatements in accordance with Intematicnal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such Internal
conlrol as management determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of consclidated financial
staternants that are free from material misstaberment, whether due to fraud or arror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for aggassing the
Group's abilty to conlinue ag a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concerm and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either Intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic akemative but ko do so.

Those charged wilh govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
ProCess.

Auditor's responsibiiities for the audil of the censolidated financial statements

Cur objectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free fram material misstatemant, whather due to fraud or errcr, and 1o lssue
an auditor's report that inchides cur opinion. Reasenable sssurance is a high level of assurance, bul is
ot & guarantea thal an audit conducted in accordance with I5As will always detect a material
misstatemeant when il exists, Misstataments can arise from fraud or errar and ane considerad material
if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statermants.

As part of an audit in accordance wilh 1SAs, we exerciss prafessional judgment and maintain
professional scepliclsm throughout the audil We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatemenl of the consolidated financial statements,
wihether dus to fraud or error, design and perdorm audit procedures responsive o those risks, and
ohitain audit avidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a bagis for our opinien. The risk
of not detecting 8 materal misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulling from
airor, as frawed may involve collusion, forgery, intentienal omissions, misreprasentations, or the
ovarride of Intemal canirol

»  Obtain an understanding of internal confrol refevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for Lhe purpose of expressing an
opinicn on the affectiveness of the Group's internal control,

¢ Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the ressonablaness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the sudlt evidence oblained, whether a matarial uncertainty exists relaled to avents
ar conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Group's abilily to conlinue as a going concem.
If we concluda that a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated finencial statemants or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audil evidence oblainad up to
the date of cur auditor's repart, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease fo confinue as a going concern.



S

PwcC

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

+ Evalusie the overall presentation, struclure and content of the consofidated financial slalements,
including the disclosures, and whather the consolidated financial staterents represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achisves falr presentation.

«  Oblain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informatien of the entities of
business activities within the Group to express an epinion on the censolidated financisl
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervsion and performance of the Group adit,
W remain sobely responsible for our audit opinion.

W communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planmed
scope and timing of the audit and significant audil findings, including any significant deficiancis in
internal control that we (dentify during our audil.

Fricows thdv‘hw

PricewatarhouseCoopers
3 April 2020
Tirana, Albania

Statutory Auditor
Jonid Lamllari
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Amounts in ALL thousand tnlass ollfierwvize siated}

Yaar ended Yoar arded
31 December 2019 31 Decembar 2018
Notes
Sales of prodiscts 6 6,420,830 5,728,635
Other revenue T 400,730 M2 e
Cost of sales B {5,279,04B] (4,976, 058)
Gross profit 1,542,612 055,267
(Mher operaling incame g 28,242 108,869
Other oparaling expenses 10 (45,077} {(37,347)
Salling and inarkeating axpanses 11 (76.077) (TG, 480)
Mdiministrative expenses 12 (548 TE0) (514 773
Operating profit 058,550 445,526
Finance incomes 508,371 1,074 4606
Finance costs (9214,355) (B02 541}
Mat finance (cosis) | income 14 {312 284} 271,925
Profit before fax f45, 866 718,451
Income tax axpense 16 (112 540) {120137]
Profit for e year 533,226 598,314

Other Comprehensive (losses)

Exchange difference on translation of

foreign operations 28 {2,101} {7,200
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

531,125 581,017
Mat Profit attributabde o
Owenar of the parent 531,125 81,047
Man-controding intarest : .
531,126 591,017
Total comprehensive income aliributable W)
Ciwners of the pasent B3f, 125 591,047
631,125 591,047

The notes an pages & to 50 are an integral part of these consolidated financial slalemants.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION
{Amounts in ALL thousand inlass othenvise sfated)

31 December 2019

31 December 200 5

MNotes
ASSETS
Mon-aurrenl assels
Fropery, plant and couipmeant 16 10 E20, 66 1BATE, 340
Right-ol-use assets 16 144,103 .
Intangitds a5sals 17 77,233 101,078
(dhar non-cumanl assels 14 S 5A7 -
Total Non-Gurrent Asssts 18,088,641 18,573,416
Current assela
Inventories 20 1,567 404 1880700
Trada recsvablag 2 368,742 TdEER
Other recovables 22 ha. 771 122 Mo
Receivables trom related pares 24k 126,136 267,863
Cash and cash eoudvalents 23 B8 428 756,020
Total Gurment Assols 2,831,481 3447 027
TOTAL ASSETS 20,991,022 21,720,443
EQUTY AND LIABILITIES
Ecpuity
Shara capital o | 10,846,510 A0, 68E 510
Aeeumuletad deficd (4,342, 322) (4,875, 548)
_Translalion rasenva il (1155 {10,054}
TOTAL EQUITY 6,332,003 £,800,9008
Man-aunrent Habilities
Interest bearing loas ard bomowings 253 12,031 481 12,164,153
Lease Rabililies 18 48, 168 .
Diefarred Ikcome tex linbilites, nal 18 1,176,893 1,162 8332
Total Mon-Current Liabilities ‘Ilﬁﬁ.ﬂ-ﬂ 13,354,085
Current liabllities
Trade payables Hh A6, 555 704,898
Qfhwer payables 7] 173,015 214, 765
Intarast bewing loans and bormowings 25h 388,742 1 471,685
Lease Lisbilites 18 43,452 .
Payables 1o related partias 29 137,400 174,118
Taotal Current Linhilities 1,352,467 2,565,450
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,658, 989 16,919,535
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,991,022 2,730,443

These consolidated fnancial stalemenis have beer approved by managemant of the

group on 05 March 2020 and signed on ils

M oot
4
[
Chlaf Executive Officer
The naotes on pages & 1o bl are
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Amourits in ALL thousand uniess othenwize stalad)

= Altribulable hﬂlla owners of ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

Non-

Shara Accumulate  Translation  controlling

capital d deficit reserve interaests Total Equity
Agat 1 January 2018 10,686,510  (5,473,862) {2,757) - 6,200,891
Med predit for the year - S0H 314 - GO8,314
Other comprehensive
loss
(Mote 28) - [7,2087) - (7,207}
Total comprehensive
Income for the year 598,314 (7,287) - 591,017
Az at 31 December
2018 10,686,610 {4@?’5.543] (10,064] - 6.EO0 908
Met prafit for the yesar 533,226 - - 535226
Ciher compealigasive
koas
[Mote 28) - {2,101} (2101}
Total comprehensive
income for the year 533,226 (2,01) - 531,125
As ot 31 Decembaer
2018 10,686 510 {4,342 322) {12,166} 6,332,033

The notes oh pages 6 to 50 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statermeants.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Amotnts in ALL thousand unless ofherwise staled)

o Year endod 31 Year ended 31
Decembar 2013 Deceimnbor 20180
Cazh flows from operaling activities
el profil bedora lexes Gd b, BAG T16 451
Aclirsbmends for
Dipgeecialion of property, plant and eguipmant 16118 935,654 49,6825
Amoatization of intangdle Gsanls 17 23,843 21822
Lossiaainy on disposal of groparty, plant and
ot 10 13,275 (&7
kovemen! in loresialion provision arat (222324} 116,140}
Movamenl in olver provisions ararzy 28,785 {18,142}
Irere=l income 14 (55} {108}
IMerest expenss 14 437 678 26,841
Frmeign exchangs {gains) 14 [139,850) (B0, 658)
Woarking Capiltal Ajustments
Decreans i inwanicoias 20 93,378 ATE, 446
Decreass in trade and other ealvables oo 160,553 5,868
(Dacreaze] ! Increass in lrade and other 261231 29
payahles il ﬁ'izlﬁi} 115,13_5_
Cash genweratad from operations 1,801,568 1.054, 248
Interest paid (374, 160) {127 283)
Intarast recabed EE __io8
Met cash flows from operating activities 1427574 1,727,080
Cash flows from investing activities
Acouisibon of property, plant and eguipmen 14 {245,413 [(331,864)
Sesyulaition of infangibde aszels 17 - [17.585)
Pracescs. from dispaosal of propedty, plant & ) 1 182
Bquipment " :
Mot cash flows used in asting aclivilies 1245,413) {348 00T}
Caeh fiows from financing activities
Praceads of borrowings 25 agz o0 121471
Repayment of bomewings 25/10a {1.8036,116) (1,329, 501)
Prncipal alements of lass paymanls 14 (57, 166) -
Paymerl of Fees {3,762) .
Mot cash flows used In financing activitios (1,116,0348) {1,208, 330)
tet increase in cash and cash equivelents ar 13 170,691
Cash and cash equivelants sl 1 January TEE,9%0 38, 146
Tranalation affact of loreign exchangn currency (16.815) 1 01
Cash and cash sgulvalenis at 31 Decambor 23 BN, 424 TEB, 50

The notes on pages & to 50 are an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements,




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts in ALL thousand unless otherwise siafed)

1, GENERAL INFORMATION

Aniea Cement Sh.A. (hereinafier refarmed as the "Company” or "Antea™) and ils subsidiaries
theralinafter referred as the "Group™ or "Consolidated Antea™) pain activity is the production and
trading of cement, in bulk and packed bags.

The company is incorparated in the Republic of Albania, with registered address at "Rr. Kazhar,
Katundl | i Awtostrada Tirane-Durres km 7, PO BOX 1746 | Tirana, Albania® The Company has
the following subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries % of ehares owned | Location |
| Alba Cemento shop.k, 100 Twane, Albania
| Camenti Antea SRL 100 | Marghera, Haly |

The Group's immediate parent is ALVACIM Lid registared in Cyprus, which has 100% sharshoiding
in the Group. (31 December 2018; Alvacim Ltd had BO% shareholding and [FC had 20%
sharchoiding in the Group)

The Group's ullimate parent is Tan Cement Internationsl 5.4 (hereinafier referred as “Titan
Group").

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

The principal accounting policies adopled by the Group, in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

{a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial atatements have been prepared in accordance with Internatianal
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") ender the historical cost eonvention the principal accounting
policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial siatements are set out below.
Apart from ihe accounting policy changes resulling from ihe adoption of IFRS 16 effective from 1
January 2019, these pokcles have been consistently appled to all the periods presenied, unless
otharwisa stated.

The consalidated financial statements have besn prepared under the historical cost convention

The preparation of consalidated financial statemants In conformily with IFRE requires he use of
cefain crifcal acoounting estimatas, It also requires management fo exercise ils judgemant in tha
process of applying the Group's accounting policies, The areaz involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexily, or areas where assumplions and estimates are significant to the
consclidated financial statements are disclosed in Mote 3,

Presemation cerrency. These consofidaled financial staterments are presented & Albanian Lek
("ALL"), unless otherwise stated, The functional cumency of Cementi Antea Srl [ Ewro, Excepl &t
indicated, financial information presented in ALL has been rounded 1o the nearest thousand.

Basiz of Consolidation

The consalidated inancial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
s\ hsidiaries as al 31 December 2019, Subsidiaries are those investess, inchuding structured enlilies,
that the Group controls because the Group (i) has power to direct the relevant aclivities of the invesiees
that significantly affect their seturns. (i) has exposune, of rights, to variable returms from its mvolement
with the investess, and (ii) has the ability 1o use its power over the investees to affect the amount of
e invesior's relurns. The existence and effect of substantive rights, including substaniive potential
voling rights, are considered when assessing whether the Group has power over anather ently,

fi



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts in ALL thousand uniess otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Far a right to be substantve, the holder musl have a practical ahllity to exercise thal right when
decisions about the direction of the relevant activities of the investee need bo be made, The Group
may have power over an Investee evan whan il holds less than the majority of the voling [>OWET in &n
wester, In such a case, the Group assesses the size of its voling rights refafive 1o the size and
dispersian of holdings of the other vole holders to delermine if it has de-facto power over the investes,
Protective rights of cther Investors, such as those that relate o fundamental changes of the investes's
aclvilies or apply only in exceptional circumstances, do nol prevent the Group fram conbroling an
investes Subsidiares are consofidated from the date on which control is transferred fo the Group
{acquisition date) srd ane deconsclidated from the date on which confrol ceasas.

The acquisiion method of accounting is used to account for the acguisiion of subsidiares. kentifigble
assels acquired and llablities and conlingent liabdties assumed in a business combénalion are
maasured at thair fair vakses ot the acquisiion date, imespective of the extant of any non-cantrolling
inbarist

Tha Group measures non-conirolling interast that represents presenl ownership inferest and entitles
the holder 1o @ proportionate share of net assets in the evant of liquidation on 2 transaction by
transaclion basis, either at: (#) far valee, or (b) the non-condrolling interest's proporticnale share of net
asseks of lhe acquirea, Non-controlling interests that are not present ownership interests ane measured
at fair value,

Goodwill 1s measured by deducting the nel assets of the scquwes from the aggregale of tha
considaration \ranséerrad for the acquires, the amount of non-controlling interes! in the acquiree and
the fair value of an interest in Ihe scquirea hald immediately bafore the acquisition date. Any neative
amount ["negative goodwill” or a “bargain purchase”) ks recognised in prafil ar loss, after managemean
reassesses whether if identifisd all the assets acquired and all the liabiles and contingent lishilities
asgumed and reviews the appropriaténess of their measurement.

The consideration transfered for the acquires is measured st the fair value of the assats given up,
equity instruments issued and llabilfies mcurred o assumed, inchuding the fair value of assels or
fiabilities fram coningent consderalion arangements, but excludes acquisibon related costs such as
advisory, lagal, valuation and similar professionsl sarvices. Transaction costs related to the acquisition
of and incuzred for issuing equity instruments are deducted from equity; transaction costs irweiirred for
wsting debt as par of the business combination are deducted from the caying amount of the debt
and all other transaclion costs associated with the acquisition are expansed,

Intercompany transaclions, balances and unrealised gains on fransactions balween Group companies
aa sliminated: unnealised losses are also eminated unless the cost cannol be recovered, The
Cesripany and all of its subsidiaries use uniform accounting policies conststent wilh the Group's
policies.

Mon-contralling imesest is that part of the net resulls and of the equity of a subsidiany atiribulable ©
interests which are not cwned, direclly or indirectly, by the Group. Non-coniroling interast forms a
separate component of the Group's equity, ANTEA CEMENT SHA., Tully cwns its subsidiaries, and
{hera ane no non-controfing interists,

{b} Significant accounting policies
fi} Foreign currency transkation

The functional cumrency of each of the Group's consclidated entities 14 e currency of the primany
econamic enviranment in which the entity operates. The functional currency of the Group and He
subaidiaries, and the Group's presentalion currency, is the Albanian Lek ("ALL"}. The consolidaled
financial statements are presented In Albanian Lek ("ALL"), which is the Group's praseniation
CLITENGY.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in ALL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b} Significant accounting policies {contined)
il  Foreign currency fransiation

Transactfons and balarices. Monetary assels and lisbilities are translaled inle each entity’s
junctional cumency at the official exchange rate of the Central Bank of Abania ('BoA’) at tha
respeclive end of the reporting period. Fereign exchange gaing and losses resulling from the
salilement of the transaclions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities into each
antily’s functional currency at year-and official exchange rates of the Bod are recognised in profit or
Inse as finance income of costs. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate o besrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are prasented in fhe income slalement within ‘finance Eveome o costs,
Transkalion at year-and rales does nol apply fo non-monetary lems that are maasured at historical
cast, Mon-maonstary ilems measured at fair value ina foreign currency, inchuding equily imvasiments,
are translated using the exchangs rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Effects of
axehange r=te changes on non-monetary llems measured al fak valee in a forelgn currency are
racorded as part of the fair value gain or l0ss.

Functional currencies of differant entities of the Group. Different entities within the Group have
dffarent functional currencies, based on the underlying economic conditions of their operalions.
This determination, of what the speciic underlying economic conditions are, requires judgament I
making this judgement, the Group evaluales amang other faciors, the kocation of activities, the
saurcas of revenue, risks associaled with aclivities and denomination of curencies of operations of
diffarant ertilies. Specifically, in determination of the funcional currencies of Gemantl Antea Srl, the
Graup based its judgement an the fact that the companies oparate internationally on markets mainky
infkeericed by the European Unien Currency ("EURT) and their major activilies include the provision
of sendces ta foreign investors. Moraover, the majority of their operations sns danominated in EUR
and alen, the EUR is the currency in which their busingss risks and exposures are managed, and
the parfornance of their business is measured.

{itf  Revenus Recognition

Revenue comprses the invoiced value for the sale of goods and services nel of vale-added lax,
and discounts. Transaction price is the amount of consideraton to which the Group axpects to be
antified in exchange for transfering conliol over promised goods or sorvicas 1o a8 cuslomser,
axcluding the amounts collscted on bahall of third parties,

Sale of goods

Sales are recognized when contral of the good has transferred, being when Lthe gonds are delverned
o Llve custamer, the customer has full discretion over the goods, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer's acceplance of the goods. Delivery occurs when Ihe goods hazs
bean shipped to the specific location, the risks of chsclascence and loss have been transferred to
the custonver, and either the custamer has accepted the goods Ik accordance with the contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective aevidence that all crieria for
accaplance hava been salisfied.

Ravenue fram the sales with discounts i recognized based on the price specified in the contracl,
netiof the estimated volume discousts. Accumulated experience |s used to estimale and provide for
tha digcounts, using the expecied value method, and revenus i only recognized (o the extent that
it i highty probabla that a significant reversal will not ocour. A refund Rability (included in frade and
ather payables) is recognized for expecied volume discounts payable to customens in relation to
gales made until the end of the repoding perlod.

Mo element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with 2 credit term of 30 to 120
days, which is consistent with market practice.

A recelvable is recognized when the goods are defivered as this is the paint in time that the
considaration is unconditional because anly the passage of time is required before the payment is
diie




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts in ALL thousand uniess otherwiso staled)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Significant accounting policies [continuad)
{il) Revenue Recognition (continued)

If the Group provides any addilional services to the customer after conirod over goods has passad,
revenue from such senvices is considered to be a separate parformance obligation and is recognized
awer the time of the service rendaring,

Sales of services

The Group provides services under foced-price conbracts. Revenue from providing gervices is
recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. Faor ficed-price contracls,
revanue is recognized based on the actual service provided lo the and of the reparling period as a
proportion of the lotal services to be provided because the customer recaives and wses the bensfits
simullanecusly. Where the confracts include mulliple performance ohligations, the fransacton price
is allocated 10 each separate perfarmance obligation based on lhe stand-alone seding prices. In
case of fixed-price conlracls, the customer pays the ficed amount ased an a paymerd scheduka. If
the sarvices rendered by the Group exceed the paymend, a contract asset is recognized. If the
payments exceed Lhe services rendered, a confract liahifity is recognized.

If the conlract includes an hourly fee, revenue is recognized in the smount to wiich the Group has
a fight o invoice. Customers are invoised For transporiation costs 8s a separale performance
obfigation. Mo olher services are performed by the GEroup.

Dividends
Revenue is recognized when tha Group's right to recalve the paymenl % established
Irtlerest Income

Inerest inceme ie recognized on a lme-proportion basis using lhe effective interest method
Revenue relates to time deposits and is recognized as interest accrues. Inlerest income is included
in lfance incomes

(i} Leases

Linil the 2018 financial year, leases wers classified as either finance or operating leases.

Finance leases were cagitalized at the commencement of the |ease at the inceplion date fair value
of the leased propedy or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments were appartioned between interest and reduction of the leasa Rabikly,

Payments made under operating leases (net of any Incentives recaivad from the lessar) were
charged to profit or lose on 3 straight-ine basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are racognized as & righl-of-use (RO} assel and & corresponding
laaze liabiily ai fhe date at which the leased asset is avallable for use. Each bease payment (5
sllacated between the lease liability and interest, which is charged to prafil or logs over the lease
pariod to produce a constant periodic rale of interest on {he remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The ROU asset is deprecialed over the shorter of the asset's usaful life and the lease
farm on a sirsight-line hasis.

The Group presents ROU assets thal do not meet fhe definition of investment property in the account
*property, plant and equipment”, the same line itam as |l presents undedying #sseis of the same
nature that it owns. ROU asseis that meet the definiion of investiment property are presantad with
imeestmant property.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounis in ALL thousand unless ofhenwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Significant accounting pelicies (continued)
{iii) Leases {continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the commencemend dale at the present value of tha lease
payments during the lease lerm that are not yet paid. ILls discountad by using the interest rale
impéiclt in the lease of, If that rate canncl be readily defermingd, The incremental horrowing rale
(1B£2). The IBR is the rate that the lessee would have to pay o barrow the funds neceasary o oblain
an assel of a similar valie in a similar sconomic environment with similar lerms and condition.

The lease Rability is subsequently increased by the inferest cost on the kease liablity and decreased
by lease paymant made. It is re-measuned when there is a modification that is nol accounted for as
a separate lease; a change in fulure lease payments arising from a change in an index or rae; &
change in the esfimale of the amounl expected to ba payable under a reskdual value guarantee; and
if the Group changes its assessment of whether a purchase or extension aption is reasonably certain
ta he exercised or 2 lerminatian option ks reasonably cerlain not 1o be exercised,

Laase liabilities include the net prasent value of the following lease payments:

Fixed paymenis (inchiding in-substance fixed payments)

Variable lease paymants thal are based on an indax or a rale

Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guaraniees

The axarclse price of a purchase option if the lesses iz reasonably cenain to exercise that aplion
Payments of penalties for lerminating the lease if the lesson will exerciss thal opllon

The ROU assef is infially measured at cosl, and subsequently at cost lees any accumutated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusled for certain re-measurements of the lease Babilly.
When ROU asset meets the definftion of iwestment propery s Indfially measured &t cost, and
subsequently measured =l fair value, in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

The initial measuremant of ihe ROU assel is coimprised by

« The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

+ Any lease payments made @l or before the commencement dale less any leass incentives
raceivad

» Any initial direct costs, and

+ Restorabion cosis

For shorl ferm beases and leases of low value assats, the Group has elacted nof to recognize ROU
asseds and lease kabilties. it recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on & straighl-kne basis over the lease term.

For leases that contaln both lease and non-lease companents, the Group chose not to separale
tham, except for terminals in which non-lease components |5 separabed from lease componanis,

Lessors

Leases In which the Group does nol Lransfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
an assel are classilied as operating leases, Operating leases of PPE are recognized according o
thest nature in the staterment of financial position.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss an @ giraight-line basis over
the period of the |lease.

Initial direct costs mewred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased assel and recogazed over the lease term on the same basis &8 rental INCOMe.
Contingent rents are recognized as revénus in the pediod in which they ane eamed.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013
{Amatinis in ALL thousand unless otherwise staled)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Significant accounting policies {continued)
{lv] Taxes

Crrrent income fax

Income taxas have been pravided for in the consolidated financial stalements in accordance wilh
legisiation enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The income 1ax
charge comprises current tax and deferred tax and &8 recognized n profit or loes for the year, except
¥ il iz recognized in other comprehensive income or directly In equity because it relales lo
transactions that are also recognized, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive
income ar directly in equity,

Currend tax is the amount expeciad 1o be paid to, or recovered from, the taxation atitharities in
reapact of taxable profls or lossas for the current and prior pariods. Taxable profits or losses ane
haged on estimales if the consolidated financial statements ane authonzed prior to fling relevant tax
petuns, Tawes other than on income are fecorded within operaling expenses.

substantively enscted at the end of the repating period, which ane expecied to apply to the period
when the temporary differences will raverse, or the tax loes carry farwards will be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards
arwl temparary differences arising batween the lax bases of assels and liabdities and their carrying
ameyunts for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the inilial recognition axemption,
deferred taxes are nol recorded for lemporary differences on initial recognition of an sssel o a
Kability In @ sransaction olher than a business combination if the transaction, when initially recorded,
affacts neilher accounting nor taxahle profit. Deterred tax Babilitiss are nol recorded for temporary
differences an initial recognition of goodwill, and subsequently for geodwill which & not daductible
for tax purposes. Deferred tax balances are maasurad 2t tax rates anactad of

Defarred 1ax assets for deduclinle temporary differences and tax loss carry lorwards are racorded
only to the extent that & is probable that the temporary difference will reverse In the fulwre and there
is sufficient fulure faxable profil available against which the deductions can be utilized

The Group conlrols the reversal of temparary diferences redating to toxes chargaeabla on dividends
from subsidiaries or on gains upen their disposal The Group doss nof recognize deferred tax
liabiliies on such lemporary differences excepl 1o the extent thal management expects the
temporary difterences to reverse In the foresesable fulure.

Uncartain tax positions. The Geoup's uncerlain tax pesilions are reassessed by managament =
the end of sach reporting pericd. Liabillies are reconded for income tax positions thal are determinad
by management &5 maore fikely than not fo result in additional taxes being levied if the: pogilions wars
to be challenged by the tax authorities, The assessmoent Is hased an the interprelalion of lax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pesiod, and any known
court or ather nilings on such isswes. Liabiities for penallies, Interest and taxes ather than on incoma
are recagnized based on management's best estimate of the expendilure requered 1o seltle the
obligations al the end of the repaiting period. Adjustrments for uncertain income tax positions ara
recorded within the income tas charge,

Value added tax. Output value added tax related to sates |s payable 1o tax autharilies on the earler
of (=) collaction of receivables from customers or (b} delivery of goods or sarvices to customers.
Input VAT is generally recoverable against oulpul VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. The fax
authoriies permil the seilement of VAT on a net basis. VAT related to sales and purchases is
recoanized in the consclidaled statement of financial position on a gross basis and disclosed
separately as an asset and liability. Where provision has been made for the EGL of receivables, the
impairment loss iz recorded for the net amount of the deblor, exchuding VAT, Based on the tax
legislation, following fulfilment of certain criterss VAT can be recoveradioffsel, as a result such
amounis have been taken into account for the impairment loss calculation.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in ALL thousand unless olherwise slated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Significant accounting policies (continued)
iv)  Property, plant and equipment

Properly, plant and equipmenl are stated al cost, net of accumulaied depreciation andfor
accumulated impairment losses, # any, Such cost incledes the cast of replacing part of the propesly,
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects i the recognition
criteria are met,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camrying amounl or recognized as a separale femed,
as appropriate, anly when it is probable that fulure economic benalls associalad with the ltem will
fiow to the Graup and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably. Costs of minor repairs and day-
bo-day maintenance are expensed whan incurred, Cost of replacing major parts or components of
properly, plant and equipmeant items are capilalized and the replaced parl is retirad,

Likewise, whan a major Inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacemant if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Al other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in the stalerment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as Incurred. The present valug of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the assed afler 85
use iz included in the cost of the respactive asset if the recognition criteria for & provigion ane med,

Infrastruciure intarvantion thal increases the useful life of property, plant and equipmend, impreves
operalions of cost oplimizalion, are capitalized into the cost of land and bullding and depreciaied
over the useful life applicable to guch catagory.

Spare Parls are recognizad as parl of Property plant and equipment if the folow critenia'e are mad

the spare parts are expected to be used for more than one period, their cosl can be measuned
resfiably, |t s probable that fulure sconomic benefils associated with the ilem will flow to the anlily,
and the unit value of the qualilying strategic spare part equats and exceeds the equivalent in ALL of
Euro 50 thousand

Depraciation

Land i& nol depreciated. Land Improvements represent inlemal roads and other infragiruciura

investments of the group. Depreciation on othar #ams of propeny, plant and equipment s caloutated
ing {he siralght-line method to allocate [heir cost to thelr residual values over thelr estimated usaful

Fwes
Lamd and improvaments 10 to 40 years
Buildings 10 ta 40 years
Plant and machinary & to 40 years
Wehicles b to 15 years
Furniture and filing, and efecironic equipment. 2 to 10 years

The residual walue of an asse! is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obiain from
tha disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the assel was alreadly of the age
and in the condiion expected al the end of its useful ife. The assets’ residual values and useful
Fves are reviewed, and adjustad il approgriate, st the end of each reporting perod.

An itam of property, plant and equipment and amy significant pan initially recognized |5 derecognized
upon disposat or when no future economic benefits are expected from its usa or disposal. Any gain
o loss ariging on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference belween Lhe net disposal
proceads and the carrying amount of the aseet) is included in the stalement af profil or loss and
other comprehensive income when the asset is derscognized.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
{Amounts in ALL thousand uniass atherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e} Significant accounting policies (continuad)
(vi) Intangible asscts

The Group's intangible assels have definite useful ives and primarily include capilalized computer
sidlwiare, boenses, and works In progress.

Acouired computer software licences are capitafised on the basis of the costs incurred o acguire
and bring fhem to use.

Lseful llves in years
Computer eoftwana 5-10 years
Licences 10 years

I imgpaired, the camying amount of intangible assels is wrillen down o the higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal,

intangible assats that have an indefinite uesful e or intangile assets not ready for use e not
subfect to amaortization and are lested annually for impairment

Assets that are subjedt to depreciation and amorization ane reviewed for impairment whoenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying ameunt may not be recoverabla. An
mpairment loss is recognized for the amaunt by which the assed's camying amount exceeds ils
recoverahle amount. The racoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair valua kess cosls of
disposal and valus in use. For the purposes of assessing impaiment, assels are grouped al the
lowesl levels for which there are kargely independent cash inflows (cash-generaling units). Prior
impairments of nen-financial assels (other than goodwill), if any, ate reviewed for possible reversal
&t sach reporting date.

{wiil Impairnent an non-financial assers

Tha Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. Il any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing tor an assel is required, the
Group eslimates the asset's recoverabla amount, An asset’s recovarable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generafing unils (CGU) fair value less costs to sall and lls value in use and is
determined for an indwidual asset, unless the assel does not generate cash inflows thal are kargely
intepandant of those from other assels o groups of assets. Whese Lthe carrying amount of an asset
or CGL excends s recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is wrilten down to its
recovarable amount, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo
their present value using a pra-tax discount rale that reflects current market assessments of the
fime value of money and the risks specikic lo the assel. In delermining fax value less costs to sell,
recent markel tranaactions are teken inko account, if aveilable. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valustion moded is used. These calculations are corroborated by valualion
mudtiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subskiiarias or other available falr value indicators,

The Group bases s impairment calculation on detalied budgets and forecast calcutations which are
prepared saparately for each of the Group's cash-generating unils to which the individual asaets are
afocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a perod of five years. Fos
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is caleulated and applied to project fulure cash flows afier
the fiftih year.

Impairment losses of continuing operalions, cluding impairment on inventories, &re recognized in
tha statamend of comprehensive income in those expense catagorias consislent with the function of
the impaired assel, except for a propery meviously revaiued where the revaluation was taken io
ofher comgrehensive income. In this case, the impawment is also recognized in other
comprehansive income up o the amount of any previous revaluation.

Far assets excluding goodwill, an assessiment |s made at each reparting date as o whather there
iz any indization hat previously recognized impaimment losses may no longer exist or may have
decraased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the assel's or cash-generating unit's
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
{Amounis in ALL thousand unless ofherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

{c) Significant accounting pelicies {continued)
{wii} Impairment on non-financial assels (continued)

racoverable amounl. A praviously recognized impairment loss is revarsed only if there has boen &
change in the assumplions used lo delermine the ssset's recoverable amount since the kst
impairment [0ss was recognized. The reversal is limited so thal (he carning amount of the assel
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
detaamined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the assel in priof years,
Such raversal is recognized in the staternent of comprehensive income unless the asset is Ganried
a1 a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revalualion increase.

{wiii) Baorrowing costs

Bormowing costs direcily attribulable o the acguisition, consirudion or production of an assel that
necessarily takes 3 substantial period bo get ready for its intended use or sale are capilalized as par
of the cost of the respective assets. All alher borrowing costs are expensed in the pericd thay occur,
Borrowing cosls consist of interest and other costs that an enfily incurs in conneclion with the
borroowing of funds,

The Group capitalizes borrowing costs for 21 eligible assets whare construction commenced on of
after 1 Janusary 2009

(k=) Financial instrumenis
Indtial recognition

Financial instruments al fair value through proft or loss (*FVTPLT) ara initially recorded ab fair value.
All other financial instruments are initially recorded al fair value adjustad for ransaclion coste, Fair
value al inifial recognition |s best evidenced by Lhe franeaction price. A gain of loss on initial
recognition is only recorded If there is a difference belween fair value and transaction price which
can be evidenced by ather ohgervabla currant marke! Iransactions in the same inslument or by a
valuation 1echnique whose inpuls include only data from observable markets. After the initial
recognition, an expectad credit loss ("ECL”) allowance i recognized for financial assels measwred
al amoized cost (AGY and invesiments in debt instrements measured at fair value through other
comprehensive incama ("FVOCI), resulting in an immediate accounting loss. T Group does not
hawe any FVTPL or FYOC! financial assels at the reporting date.

Financial asaets

Classification and suhseguenl neasurement — measuramen! catagones

The Group classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories: FVTPL, FwoCl and
AL, The classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: () the
Group's buginess model for managing the related assets portfolio and (8) the cash flow
characienstics of the assel.

Classification and ambsequenl measurement — busingss madel,

The business model refiecls how the Growup manages the assets in order to gensrabe cash flows —
whather the Group's chjectivi s: (1) solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets ("hold
to collact contractual cash flows® ) or i) to collect bath the contraciual cash flows and the cash flows
arsing from the sale of assels (*hold to collect conlraciual cash flows and sally ar, Il neither of (i)
and (i) is applicable, the financial assets are classiied as part of “other’ business maodel and
meaeured 3t FYTPL. The currenl Group's business moded is “Hold to collect”
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts in ALL thousand unless olherwisa stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINLED)
{c) Significant accounting policies (continued)

{ix) Financial instruments (continuead)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsaguen! measwweman — cash fow characlenslics.

Where the business model |5 1o hold sssets fo collec] contractual cash fiows ar 1o hold confractual
cash fiows and sefl, the Group assesses whether the cash flows represent sclely paymenta of
principal and interest ("SPPI7). Financial assets wilh embedded derivatives me considerad in their
entiraly when defemmining whelher their cash flows are consistent with tha SPP feature. In making
this assessment, the Group cansiders whether the contraclual cash flows are consislent with a basic
lending arrangement, ie. interest includes only considesation for credit nisk, lime value of money,
ol Basic kending risks and proll margin,

Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk ar valatility that is inconsistent wilh a basic
lending arrangement, the financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL. The SPPI
assessment is performed on indlial recognition of an asset and 1L |s not subsequantly reassesaed
The Group's financial assets inclisde cash and shori-tarm depesils, trade and other receivabies, and
shart-tarm loans, which meat the SPPI criteria.

Trado recoivalies

Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments thal are
nat quaoted (n an active markal. Afer initlal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
mensured al amortized cost using the effectve interast rale method (EIR), less impairment,
Amortized sost s calculaled by {aking inlo account any discount or premium on acqisiton and fees
ar costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorization is included in finance income in
the staternent of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the income
statement in profit or loss,

Financial assels — reciassification

Financial instrumenls are reclassified only when the buginess modal for managing the porifolio as
a whaolg, changes. The reclassification has a prospective effect and lakes place from the beginning
of the first reporting period that foliows after the change in the business model, The Group did nol
change its business model during the current and comparative period and dd not make any
rechissifications.

Wnite-off

Financial assats are willen-off, in whola or in pan, when the Group exhausted all practical recovery
offorts and has concieded thal there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, The wiite-off
represents 8 deracognilion eventl. The Group may write-off financial assets that are sill subject to
anforcement activity when |he Group seeks to recover amounts that are conlractually due, however,
1here ia no reasonable expectation of recovan.

Drevrecogniion

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a linancial assel or part of & group of similar financial
assols) is derecognized when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired

. The Group has transferred its rights 1o recelve cash flows from the asset o has assumed
an ahbligation fo pay the received cash flows in lull without materisl delay to a third party under a
‘pags-throwgh’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferrad conlrol of the assatl.




CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

[Amounts in ALL thousand uniess otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(¢} Significant accounting palicles (continued)

{ix}) Financial instrumants {continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impatnment of financial assels - cred loss allowance for ECL

The Group assesses the ECL for debit instremants maasured st AC, The Group measures ECL and
recognizes net impairment losses on financial and conlrac! assels at each reporting dale The
measurement of ECL reflects: (I} an unbiased and probabilily welghted amount that is determined
by evalualing a range of possble outcomes, (i) time value of money and (W) all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost and efforl at the end of each reporting
penicd aboul past events, current candiiions and forecasts of future conditions.

Credit loss allowance is recognized using a simplified approach at lifelime ECL. The ECL s
recognized through an allawance account 1o write down tha recelvables’ net carmying amount 1o the
prasent vale of expected cash fows discounted at the interest rales.

Financlal Hahilities

Classilication and subsequenl meastvement — measurainsnt calegones.

Financial labilities are classified as subseguently measured at AG, except far (i) financial liabilties
at FYTPL: this classification is applied lo derivatives, financial Rabilitles held for frading {e.g. shorl
positions in securities), contingenl consldesstion recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination and other financial BabiMies designated as such a1 initial recognition and (i) financil
guarantee contracts and laan commilments. The Group's fimancial liabilities nclude trade and other
payablas, lsans and borowings.

Loans amd barrcimigs

After initial recognition, inferesi bearng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al
amortized cost using the effectiva interest rale method. Gains and losses are recognized in the
statament of profit or loss when the liabidies are deracognized as wel as through the effective
intarast rala mathod CEIR) amorization rocess,

Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
coste that are an Inegral part of the EIR. The EIR amartization is included in finance costs in the
glatement of prali or loss,

Derecognition Financial liabilfies are derscognized when they are extinguished {l.e. when the
abligation specified In the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).

An exchanga between the Group and ils onginal lenders of debt instruments with substantially
different tarms, as well a5 substaniial modilications of the terms and conditions of esdsting financial
llabilities, are accounted for as an exdinguishment of the original financial liabily and the recognilion
of a new financial liabliity. The terms ara substantially diffesent i the discounted present value of the
cash flowe under the new terma, incheding any fees pakd net of any fees recaived and discounted
using the original effective inlerest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original inancial labsity. If an exchange of debl instruments or
modification of lerms |5 accounted for as an estinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are
recognized as parl of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange of modification is not
accounted for as an exlinguishment, any costs ar fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of tha
liaility and ara amorlized over the remaining berm of the modified liabdily.

Modifications of Babiiities that do not resull in exinguishment are accounted for a8 a change in
esfimate using a cumulative catch up methad, with any gain or loss recegnized n profit or loss,
unless the economic substance of the diflerence in camying values is attribuled to a capital
transaction with cwners.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in ALL thousand unless otherwise slated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c} Significant accounting policies {continuead)

(i) Financial instruments. {contineal)

Financial liabllitles {continuad)

Oifzatling of fnancial instreemanls

Financial assels and financial Eabilities are alfset, and the net amount reported in the slatement of
linancial position if, and only i, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offeet the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to sellle on a net basis, or o realize the assels and setile the
Eahilties simultanecusly. Such a right of set off (2} must not be contingent on a fulure event and (b)
musd ba legally enforoaable inall of the following circumstances: (1) in ihe nomal course of business,
(i} in the event of defaull and (i) in the evenl of insalvency or bankruplcy.

(x} Trade payables

Trade payahles are accrued when The counterparty parforms its obligalions undar ke contract and
are recognized indialy sl fair value and subsequently carried at amodized cost using the effective
interes! method, Accounts payable are classified as current liabikties if payment is due within one
year of less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). |{ nol, they are presentad as
man-current Eebilities.

[ Cash and short-term doposits

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, current accounts and deposits held at call with
banks, and other shart-term highly liquid investments with original malturilies of three manths or less.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried # amorized cost using the effective Interest method.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-lesm deposits as defined above.

{xhl) Inventorfes

Irventories are recorded al the lower of cost and net realizabde valus, The cost of finished goords
and work in prograss comprizes raw material, direct labous, elher direct costs and related preduction
overheads (based an the normal operafing capacity) bt exchudes borrowing costs, Mel realizable
value is the estimated seffing price in the ordinary cowrse of business, less the estmated cost of
completion and selling expenses

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its presant location and conditions are accounted for as
fallowe:
Raw materials;

% Purchase cosl on a first in, first out basis

Finlshed goods and work in progress:

%=  Cost of direcl materals and labour and a propaion of manufachiing overheads based on
niormal oparating capacity but excluding borrowing Costs. Initial cost of inventaries includes
the transfer of gaing and losses, recognized In other comgrehensive incoma, in respect of
the purchases of raw materials.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in ALL thousand unless otherwise slated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(¢} Significant aceounting policies [conlinued)
(i) Prowisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obfigation (legal or constructive) as a resull
of a past event, il is probable that an outflow of respurces embodying economic benefits will be
required to sefile ihe obligation and a refiable estimate can be nwade of the amount of the obligation.
Prowisions are nat recognized for fulune aperating losses.

Whera there are several similar obligations, the likelihood that an oulflow will ba required In
satllement 1s delesmined by considering Lhe class of obbigations a8 a whole. A prowsion |5
recognized even i the likelihood of an cutfiow with respect 1o any one ilem included in the same
class of obligations may be small

Provisions are measurad at the present value of the expendiluses expected o be required to seltle
the abligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time vakue of
maney and the risks specific o the obligation, The increase in the provision due to passage of lirme
is recognized as inleres| expense.

{xivl  Bhare capifal

Ohrdinary shares are classified as equity. Inemental costs directly altributable to the issun of Paw
shares are shown In equity 28 a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any sxcess of the falr
value of consideration received over the par value of shares isued is recarded as share premium
in enuity.

Oividends are recorded as a liability and deducted from equily in the period in which they are
declared and approved. Any dividends declared after the reporting pericd and before the nancial
stalemenis are authorized for issue are disciosed in the subsequent events note, The statutary
accounting reports of the Group are fhe basks for profit distribution and ofher appropriations.

{xv) Employee heneliis

Wages, salaries, conlributions to the state pension and social insurance funds, paitd annual leave
and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefils (such as health services) are acciued in the
yaar in which the associaled services are rendered by Ihe employess of the Groug, The Group has
no legeal or constructive obEgation 1o make pension or simitar benefit payments beyond the statutory
dafined contribufion schamess,

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management 1o make
judgments, estimates and assurptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expensas,
assets and Eabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabiliies, at the end of the reporting period.
Uncadainly sbout these assumplions and estimates could resull in cutcomes thal resquire a material
adjustment io the carrying ameount of the asset or liabilily aflected in future periods.

The key assumptions conceming the fulure and other key sources of estimalion uncerainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adpusiment to the carrying amaunts
al assels and liabilities within the nex financial year, are described below. The Group based s
assumplions and astimates on parameters avallable when the consolidated financial stalements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumplions about fulure devalopments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions whon they accur,
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts in ALL thousand uniess otherwise staled)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
L Impairment of recelvables

Management maintains an allowansce for doubtful receivables to account for estimated losses resulling
from the mabilty of customers fo make required payments.

Measurarment of ECLs is a significant estimate that imohves determination of a methodology, models and
data inpuls. The Group assesses individually all court cases and receivabies due mare than 385 days.
The expected credit loss is the produet of the exposure of default, loss given defaull and probabiiy of
defaull, WACC of 6.2% is used for discounting,

All other trade receivables are assessed collectively by using a simplified approach al lifelime ECL. Loss
rafios per calegones are calculated based on a provisioning matrix which considers exposura at defaull,
historical defaul rates, customer cradit worthiness and changes in cuslomes payment terms.

I, Useful lives of property plant and equipment, and intangible assels

Accounting for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assels involves the use of estimates fear
dletermining the expecled usshul lives of these assets and their residual valuees. The determanation of (he
usatul lives of the assels is hased on management's judgment. Furiher delasils are provided in Note 2 (d),
(iv) and {vi) and Note 16 and 17.

. Taxes

Uneeraintios axist wilh regpect to the interpretation of complesx tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of filure taxable income. Given the wide range of intemational business
relationships and the longderm nature and compledly of existing contractual agreements, diferences
arising between the aclual resulls and the assumplions made, or future changes o such assumptions,
could necessdate future adjustments o fax income and expense already fecorded. The Group
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimatas, for possible consequEnces of audits by the tzx
authorities of the respective counties in which il operates. The amount of such pravisions is based on
various factars, such as expenence of pravious tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations
by Lhi Laceable entity and the responsibie tEx authosy.

Such differences of intarpeatation may arise on a wide varlely of issues depending on the condilions
prevailing in the respective Group domicile. As the Group assesses the probabilily far & Migation and
subseguent cash outflow wilh respect to taxes as remote, no contingent lisbility has Deen ressognized,
Deferred tax assats are recognized for afl unused tax losses o the exlent that it is probable hal taxable
profl will be available against which the losses can be ulllized. Significant management judgrment s
raquired o delermine tha amount of deferred tax assets thal can be recognized, basaed upon the Fkaly
timing and the level of future taxabile peofils togather with future tax planning etralegies.

I¥.  Environmental restoration costs - Provisions for Forastation
The Growp i required to parform restoralion works consisting In re-forestation on quarries and processing

siles on an angeing basis based on a specific schedule binding explosation. These works are fulfilled
gach year and the respective costs are recognized in the financlal results of the Group.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

3. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {CONTINUED)

Eslimales and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions 1o accouning
aslimales are recognized in the pericd in which the estimate is revised and in any fulure periods affecied,
Information about significant aneas of estimation uncedamly and critical judgments in applying accounting
polickes that have the mast signilicant effect on tha amount recognized in the consolidated financial
slalements are descrbed in the fallowing nobas:

Male 15 — Incoma lax expense

Mote 21 — Trade receivable

Mote 27 - Provisions

Mote 33 — Commitmenis and contingencies

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has exposure 1o credd risk, Bquidily risk and rmarkel risk from the use of financlal inslrumente.

This nofe prasents information about the Group's expoeure to each of the above risks, he Group's
objectives, policies and processes far measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of

capital Further quantilative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial sistements
antl in note 30,

The Board of Direciors has overall responsibiity for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework,

The Group's fisk management polickes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, lo st agpropriste risk fimits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to imits. Risk
management policies and systems arne reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group's actvities. The Group, through it training and management standards and procedires, aims to
develop a discipiined and constructive conirel environment in which all employees understand their roles
and ohligations,

The principal financial instruments of the Group consist of cash on hand and 8l banks, trade accounts
raceivable and payable, other receivables and kabilities.

(i) Cradit risk

Due to the large volume and diversity of the Group's cuslomer base, concentrations of credit risk with
respect to trade accounts receivable from customers are not significant. The expected credil loss
allowance is stated at the amount considered necessary to cover polential risks in the collection of
accounts receivable balances.

(i}  Liguidity risk

The Group generates cash flows from opesaling aclivities such that it believes thal its liquidity risk s not
significant

{iii} Market risk

trteres! rale sk

The Group faces interest rale cash flow risk related o its borrowings which are at a variable rate,
nanagement has nol entered any derivalives to hedge This sk

Foveign excharge fsk

The Group has significant exposure boward fereign currencies, The Group has langlerm and short-tarm
borrowings denominated in Euro.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and currency risks the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-emm
fluctuations on the Group's earnings., Owver the longer-term, however, permanent changes In foreign
exchange and interast rates might have an impact on profil. Please refer to the respective sensilivily
analysls in note 30a and 30b.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amaunis in ALL thousand uniess otherwise staled)

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
(v} Capital management

The Group's poficy is to maintain a strong capilal base 1o rnaimiain investar, creditor and markel
confidance and 1o sustain fulure development of the busineas. The Board of Directors manitors the
EBITDA which is earnings before interast, taxes and depreciation.

The Board seeks to malnlain a balance batween the higher returns thal might be possible with higher
levels of barrowings and the advantagas and security afforded by a sound capital position.
The Group is not subjec! 1o externally imposed capiial requiremants.

5. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The accounting poficies adopled in the preparation of he consolidaled financial staternents ara conslstent
wilh those foliowed in the preparation of the Group's consclidated financial stalements for the year encled
31 December 2019, except for the adoptian of new standards and interpretalions effective as of 1 January
2014,

IFRS 76 “Leases”

IFRS 16 supersedes 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Dalermining whethar an Arrangement confaing a Lease,
SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substances of Trangactions Imvolving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The slandard sels oul the principles for the recegnition, measurement,
presertation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet modsl

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modilied refrespective method of adoplion with the dale of inilial
appication of 1 January 2019, Under this method, the standard & applied retrospectively with tha
curmulative effect of initiaf application recognized in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2013

Fraciical expedients apphisd

In appiying IFRS 16 for the fiest Ume, the Group has used the following practical expedients on transition
permitbed by thi standard:
- applying @ single discourt rate to a parifolio of leases with reasonably simiar characleristics,
for contracts entered before the Iransiion date, relying of ils assessment made by applying |AS
17 and Interpretation 4 Dedermining whether an Arangement contains a Lease,
- relying on previous assessments on whether leates ang onerous,
accounting for operaling leases with a remaining lease lerm of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2010 as shor-lerm leases,
excluding initial direct costs for the measuwrement of the right-of-use asset af the date of initial
application, and
- using hindsight In defemining the lease lesm where the confract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

Mareowver, the Group elected to use the on-geing recognilion exenmplions for lease conlracls fhat, at he
commencement dale, have a lease term of 12 months of less and do not contain a purchase oplion
{shart-tarm leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low valus (low-value assets),
for example small lems of office furniture, or IT equipment. Payments associated wilh ghart-term leases
and |eases of low-valus assets are recognized on a straighl-line basks as an expanse In profd or loss.

Finally, the Group chose not o separate the non-lsase components from lease components. This
simplification is applicable to all class of underlying assel 1o which the right of use relates, excepl for
lerminals in which non-lease components s separated from lease components.

The change in the accounting pokey alfecied the following ltems in the statement of financial position of
the Group on 19 January 2018,

Z1



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in ALL thousand unless otherwise stated)

5. ADOCPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

1 January

2014

Right of use al assat 184,176
Gurrend leaze liabilities 53,885
Maon-currant lease liabilities 130,19

Adjustments recogrieed on adogplion of IFRS 16

The lease Habii#ies on 1 Janusary 2019 can be reconciled fo the operaling lesse commilments on

31.12.2018 as follows:

1 January
2048
_Dperating |ease commmitments disclosed on 31.12 2018 248,600
A Discountod using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate (IBR) on
1.1.2018 193,682
B: {Less): shorl-term leases recognized on 1.1.2019 &5 expenses on a slraight-
fine basls {5,093}
_C: Addilless): Other adjusiments (4.313)
“Lease liability rocognized on 1.1.2019 (A-B-C) 184,176
Of which are:
Currenl lease labilties 53 985
Mon-current lease liabiites 130,191

The associated right-of-use assets of certain lease cantracls were measured on a retiospective basis, as
if the new rules had abtways been applied. Other right-of use assets were measuned al Lhe: ameunt egual
to the [ease llabifity, adjusted by the amount of any prepald or accrued lease payments rekating 1o that

lsase recognized in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008,

The recognized righi-of-use assels relate 1o the following types of sssels:

1 January

2019

Froperiies 160,104

Equipment -

Medor Vehicles 24,072
“Total 184,176 _
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SHLA.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amonnts in ALL thousand unless othenwise slaled)

5. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AMD INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

The following amended standards became effective for the Group from 1 January 2019 bat did not hanse
any material impacl on the Group.

N IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (issued on 7 June 2017 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2079).

. Prapayment Features wilh Negative Compensalion — Amendments (o IFRE @ (issued on
12 Cletober 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2079).

% Amendments 1o 1AS 28 “Longderm Interesls in Associates and Joint Ventures" (lssued an
12 Cictobar 2017 and effective for annual perieds beginning on or alter 1 January 2019},

" Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle — amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and
145 23 (isseed on 12 December 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015},

. Arendments o 1AS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setllernent” (issued on 7 Februasy 2018
and edfective for annual periods beginning oo of aftes 1 January 2019),

Cerain new standards and interpretations have been isseed that are mandalary for the annual perods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 ar laler, and which tha Group has nol garly adophed. The Group is
in the process of determining the impact that these amendments might have on ite accounts when
adopled

- @ale or Contribution of Assels between an Investor and 15 Associate or Joinl Venlue —
Amandments 1o IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by the IASE).

- IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts"{issued an 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021).

Amendments to the Concepiusal Framework for Financial Reporting (issued on 29 March 2018
and effective for annual periods beginning on oF after 1 January 2020

Defindion of a business — Amendments 1o IFRS 3 (issued on 22 Octaber 2018 and effective for
acquisitions from the beginning of annual reporing pericd thak starts on or afler 1 January 2020

- Definition of materiality — Amendmenis to IAS 1 and IAS B (issued on 31 Ocicber 2018 and
effective far annual periods baginaing on or after 1 January 2020}

- Interest rate benchmark reform - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 3% and IFRS 7 (jssued on 26
Septarmber 2019 and effective for annual pesiods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

The Group has perdormed a preliminary analysls and has determined that the above standands and
pronunciations are not expecled to have a sigaificant Impact on the Group's accounts and results of
oparations.

6. SALES OF PRODUCTS

The sales of goods refleclad in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehansive
income are analysed as follows in lesms of domaestic and forelgn markets, as wed as per iype of product;

214 2018
Domestic market o, 330,344 3,824 446
Fareign marked 2,535,188 2.476,384
Discounts (244 GA3) {272,195}
Tatal 6, 20,830 5,726,630
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE MENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amaurnts in ALL thousand unless otherwise staled)

6. SALES OF PRODUCTS (CONTINUED)

Furlher sales analysis is provided as lolows:

208 2018

Dreyresdic markel
Sales of own cement 4 198,658 3,791,036
Sales al clinker 100,962 -
Bales af importad cement ana24 53,410
Discounts {244 683} (272, 195)
Total 4 085 661 3 662 251
2019 2018

Fowegn marked

Sales of cemeant 2246 503 2083773
Sabes of clinker 4045 92 312
Sades of Impored cemenl A3, 341 240
Total 2,335,168 2,176,384

The Group derives revenie Trom the transfer of goods at a pointin fime, For demestic sales, the canlol
{5 fransferred al the mament that goods are mads availsble (ex-works) and when laken in charge by &
carrier (CPT). For axport sales, the control is Lransterred at the moment that goods are loaded in the
vessel and ready for shipment.

Confracts with custemars do ot contain a significant financing component as the paymen termis are on
shori-lerm markel commercial lerms. The adoption of IFRS 15 has not impacled the Group regarding
revenue recognilion for both sales of goods and services detailad in Note 7,

7. OTHER REVEMUES

Other revenue Tor the year end 31 December 2018 and 2018 are provided as follows:

2019 2018
Revanues from freight 39E 059 200 748
Revenies from materials sold T.671 9,945
Tatal 400,730 212,661

Revenues from maberias sold in the amount of ALL 7671 thousand on 31 Decamber 2012 includes sales
of Raw Matarials and other Consumables. During the year ended on 31 December 2018, revenues from
matedials sold in the amount of ALL 8,945 thousand includes sales of other and consurmabies matarals,
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

{Amounts in ALL thousand iniless othenwise staled)

B.

GCOST OF SALES

The Cosl of sales in the consolidaled statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income ara
analyzed as follows:

2019 2018
Variable cosis: 3,847,735 3,533,601
Distribution axpenses Fri472 654 6559
Filln Tusl 1,225,084 1,200,031
Efeciricity Ta0,303 705,184
Rawr materials and addifives 490,030 435 687
Refractories 53,763 54,305
Fusl and oll 032y B&T:
Royalty 48,274 46,699
Packing expenses 35T B39 ATV.220
Cosl af mported Cement 119,814 34,8497
Cast of matenals sobd 6 463 B, G501
Other variable costs 4 G676 10,358
Fixed costs: 1,431,313 1,442,458
Plant salaries and related expenses 264 920 252 533
Repair and mainienance — spara parts 123,049 111,052
Sarvices from third paries 185,718 211,030
Rent expenzas 10 3,678
Pland ulilities 13,166 10,848
Cither e oosl A5 052 40,878
Depreciaton charges 03241 Th2 471
Depreciation Right of use Assets 38,126 -
Irwentary variation {42, 258) 28 870
Total 6,279,048 4,075,068
Distribution Expenses are furlher brokes down as follows:
2019 2018
Distribution expenses rélated 19 Domestic Sales 204,176 183,658
Distribution expensas |||°.-:z=|l~;'::lL 1o Emrtﬁ Sales 82 858 310,902
Distribution expensas related to Overseas
\raneportation 284 538 160,099
Tolal TH.472 654,659
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
{Amournts in ALL thovsand unless offenwise stated)

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other income in the conscidated slatement of profil or loss and other comprehensive income ane
anslysed as follows;

2019 2018
Incame from fixed assefs disposal - 1,182
Rembursemen of excise 50,819 70,082
Revergal of Impairment for Trade Receivables 23,224 -
Reversal of Provision far Foreststion = 16,140
Reversal of olher provisions (Moke 27} 258 20,859
CHher 11,841 1,486
Total 86,242 409,859

Rewvearsal of ather provisions for 2018 in the amount of ALL 258 thousand refaled to provision for un-used
holidays. (2018; Reversal of other provisions for in the amount of ALL 16,347 thousand refated o
provision for aperational risk created in the previous period, that has bean setlbed during current pariod
as well as the amount of ALL 2,612 reversal of provision for un-used holdays, Reversal of forestalion
provisicn in the amount of ALL 16,139 thousand relales to forestation works seflled during the currend

period.)
10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

An analysis of other operating expenses is presantad in the lable below:

2019 2018
Lnases from Sabes andior Disposal of foeed assets 13,275 1,115
Other provigions 27 043 1,816
Losses al invenaory 1,41 B0
Oiher enpinses 3,268 34 336G
Total 46,077 37,347

2010; Other provision in the amount of ALL 23 224 thousand relates to provision for other non-current
assets (Mote 19).The amount of ALL 2,128 thousand relstes to provision for obsolede inventones (Mot
20} and the amount of ALL 1.892 theusand refates to additional personnel costs (Note 27).

20ri8: Other provision in the amount of ALL 1,818 thousand for addifional personnel costs (Note ZT).
included in other expenzes there is an amount of ALL 10,583 relatad to one-off forestation obligations
performad by the Group during the year as well as the amounl of ALL 19,607 thousand relatad 1o
sedilaments with Third paries.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Amounts in ALL fovsand uniess olherwise stated)

1. SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

These expenses ralaba to costs incurred during the main activities of the Group companies for seiling and
marketing of b primany produecis,

2014 2018
Salaries and related expenses (Note 13) 47,214 G060
Litilites: 13,245 14,F0G
Depreciation Right of usa Assets 3,207 X
Othar axpenges 1237 o814
Total 76,077 76,480

12,  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

An analysis of ganeral and administrative expanses ks presanted in the table halow;

2018 2018
Consultancy foes 158,854 145,752
Salarias and relaled expenses (Mote 13) 91,324 06,606
Supplies B0 GE2 84,180
Deprociation charge T2 5588 B7,153
Ciher expenses 51,131 22,375
Insurance and taxes 34676 A0 5B7
fmorization 23,843 21,822
Depreciation Right of Lise Assels 18,451 .
Uilitias G462 13,103
Repairs and maslenanse B&20 B,551
Travel — entertainment 5255 6,664
Total 548,750 514,773

13, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Employes benefit expenses represent costs for salaries and wages incurred during the year.

2018 2018
Gross saiaries 270,745 271383
Social and health confributions 41,413 35,541
Other employes axpenses 91,213 21,885
Total Employes Expensas 403,471 400,199
Alincated fo:
Cost of sales (Note 8) el R s 252 633
Selling and marketing expenses (Note 11) 47,218 50,980
Administrative expenses (Mole 12) 04,324 48, 505
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts i ALL thousand unfess ofhernwise sfaled)

14,  FINANCE INCOME AND FINAMCE COSTS

Finance income and cosls is relaled to the proft and losses during the year from exchange rale
differences (reafized and unrealized), bank charges, commissions and fees, interest expensas and
Inceme and other financial coats relaled to the outstanding borrowings.

2019 2018
Foreign exchange gain G086 316 1,074,360
Foreign exchange losses {468 465) (267,700)
Met Foralgn Exchange Gains 138,850 806,660
Interest expenses {437,678 [526,841)
Interest axpanses — Leasa Liability (6.955) -
Bank charges {9, 357) (8,200
Intarest income oa 106
Kl Finance Cost (452,834) {534,735)
Wit Finance [(Cost) J Income (312,984} 271,926
15 INCOME TAX
The income lax expense camprises of the followindg;
2019 28
Gurrend Income fax {125 ,679) (116,108}
Deferrad income tax 13,038 {4,02%)
Income tax expanse {112,640) (120,137}

A reconciliation of current income tax for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018 is

provided as follows:

2019 2ma
Accounting profit ! (loss) before Incama tax 645,868 718,461
Arkdl back:
Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes 158,879 141,408
Tax Deprecations 2,058 -
Less:
Tax Depraciations = (1.067)
Maon-Taxable Income {23,0559) {55, 584)
Liilzation of Taxable Losses Carried Froward {34 984) {29,157)
Taxable profit 837 860 774,051
Gurrent Income Tax at 15% 126,673 116,108
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

iAmatnts in ALL thousand unless otherwise sialed)

16.  INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Up to 31 December 2018 Cementi Antea SRL, a subsidiary of the Group located I laly, has incurred
taxable losses [a lhe amound of ALL 320,436 thousand. During 2019 an amownd of ALL 34,904
thousand was ulilized agamnst the profils of the vear in laly. Based on lalan Tax Legisiation losses
can be carred foraard for an indefnite period.

On 31 December 2019 the Group has recognized defarred lax as lollows

31 December 2018 31 December 2048

Dederred tax liability (1,176,893) {1, 189,932
Deferred tax Hability = {1,176,893) [1,189,932)
Mt delerred tax {1,176,893) (1,189,932

Differences balween IFRES and slalony taxation regulations in Albania give rise fo bamporary
differencas balwean the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial repoding purposos and
(heir iz bases. Tha fax affect of the movements In these temporany differences is detailed balow.

The movement in deferred ncome 1ax @ssels during the wear, wilthout teking inlo consideration 1o
offsetting of balances within the samse L junsdiction, s as follows:

Statement of Financial

Position Statement of Profit or Loss
31 December 31 Deceamber
2019 1A 2019 2018

Defarrad tax assols
Right af use Asssls T26 - V26 .
Allovwances for unussd leaves 1,661 1,700 (30 [3592)
Impairent of receivables 65,360 655,491 (131) (3,6086)

} &7, 747 87,1 556 {3,998)
Daforred tax liabilities
Depreciafionfamaodization far
tax purposas (1,244 ,6440) {1,257,123) 12483 (31)

{1.244,640)  (1,267,123) 12,483 (31}

Defarrod tax |0ss {1,176,883) [1,189,932) 13,039 (4,028)
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

- .

17. INTANGIBELE ASSETS

Group's movements in infangibie assels are shown as follows:

Computar
ney" s Licences Total

Cosl:
At Janvary 2018 127,793 5382 133,165
Additions 14,563 2,932 17,585
Transfers et - =
At 31 December 2018 142,446 8,204 160,740
AddRicns - - -
Transfars - . .
At 3 December 2019 142 4di 8,284 150,740
Amortization:
At 1 January 2016 27,751 a1 27 8342
Amartization charge for the year 21,822 - 21,822
Translation Reserve ; = :
At 3 December 2018 48 573 a1 49,664
Amarization charge for the year 23,080 Th3 23,843
Tranelalion Resarse = = >
At 31 December 2019 72,633 a4 73,067
Met book value:
At 31 December 2018 §2.873 8,200 101,078
At 31 December 2019 69,813 T 20 T7.233

Mo intangible assets have been pledged as a coliateral as al 31 Decermbar 2019 and 2018,

18, RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Right of Use Assals Properties Vehicles Total
Carrying amount at
1 January 2018 160,104 24,072 164,178
Additions 12,488 7003 19,506
Dizposals = , L
Depreciation charge {50,168) {8,708) (50,874}
Translation differance 215 - 215
Carrying amount at 31
Decamber 2015 122,641 21,482 144,103

Lease Liabilitios

31 Decombar 2019

0 January 2018

Current 46,452 53,085
_Mon-Gurrant 98,168 130,181
Total 144 G20 184 176
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

fAmauntz in ALL housand unless olferwise staled)

12. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

3'1_-D_nr.amhaf g 3 December 2018

Oitiver Mon-current Assels 32,761 -
Provisions {23,224) -
0637 -

Movemants in the provisions for other non-curment assets are ahown as follows:

3 December 2009 31 December 2018

Balance al 1 January -
Provision booked during the year (Nole 3.5) 23,224 -

Balance as at 31 December 23,224 -

Other Mon-Current Assels ane assels, oblained by the group theolgh Lhe bailiff execulkon and enfarcement
procadura for non-parforming cuslomerss which were parl of these procedures. The group expects 1o
disposafsell of the assals in the foreseeatle fulure. The assats are initially recognised at fair value whan
acquired and are subssguently ramessierad al nel realisabla value, Al 21 Decembar 20089 non-curmant
assels recognized based on the bailiff enforcement proceduse ware ALL 32,761 thousand. In addition, the
group has recognized a provision in the amouni of ALL 23224 (housand thal reflects collectahility
reatrictions and logs in fair value of the propedbas.

20. INVENTORIES

3 December 2019 31 December 2018

Spare parls T8 845 847734
Raw materials 303,760 370,359
etk in progress 156 819 111,10
Finkzhed goods 120,086 123637
Other malerials 104,411 114,124
Packaging malenials 64,356 76,308
Goods far resals 21,255 17,810
Provision for damaged goods (2,128) =

1,567 404 1,660,780

LK)
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20. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

Movemants in the provisions Far inventony are shown as follows:

31 December 2048 31 December 2018

“ETaJanne al 1 January =
Provision booked during the year (Wole 10 2128

Balance as at 31 Dacambear 2128

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES
As al 31 December 2019, trade recetvables are compoased of the following:

M December 2019

H December 2048

Trada receivables 1,068,342 1,071,628
Allowance for EGL (G5, B00) (724.821)
Trade Receivables, Mel J68,Ta2 346,588

Trade recehvables ame non-interest bearing and are gensrally on 30-120-credit ferms.

The Group applies the IFRS 8 simphiied approach o messuring expected credit losses which uses a

lifetime expacted oes allowance for &l irade recelvables provisioning matrix.

Az at 31 Decambar 2019, the aging anakysls of trade receivables is a5 follows:

A December 2040

31 December 2018

Currend 218,071 130,703
lezs than 30 days overdue 76,704 102,328
from 31 1o 80 days overdue 3513 14,226
fram 81 12 90 days ovardue B.591 3414
fram 91 to 180 days overdue 5,195 3,151
fram 1871 to 360 days overdues 5,093 18,418
over 350 days overdue 723,175 799,201
I::;r:ﬂlvﬂzlns before allowances on doubtiful 1,068,342 1,074 520
Allorgrames for trade recaivablas (659, 600) (?241,331}_
Met trade receivables 368,742 246,698

The Growp in calculating impament for trade receivables considers a range of gualifative and quantitative
factors like aging of recelvables, pagl historical data of the customer, as wall as guarantoas received from

the cuslomer.

A movement in allowances for trade and doublful debis for the year ended 31 Decamber 2018 and 31
December 2018 ks shawn as follows, The new mardel has net impacted the provision for mpairment of the

Group as the provisioning matrix was not substantially different:
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21, TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

3 Decomber 2018

3 December 3018

Balance at 1 January
Revarzal of Impairment
Translation ddfarence

Balance at 31 December

24,831 T A2
(23.224) 2

(2,007} [11581)
629,600 724,831

The credit loss afowance for trade recelvables is datermined according lo provision matrix presented in

the fabie helm,
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Gross Gross
Loss carrying  Lifetime Less carrying  Lifetime
in % of gross valie rile amount ECL rate ament ECL
‘: c; LI rﬂrﬂni ‘f““ e 5,75 218,071 {12,635) 5.50% 130,704 [F.288)
= lpss than 30 days overdue 3.10% 60 {2.376) 1.21% 102,324 (1,241}
- M 180 days ovardus 2.21% 31,513 (355} 1.25% 14,726 {177}
- 81 1o 90 days overdue 8.189% B, 591 (445)  2,06% 3414 {101}
- 81 fo 180 days overdue 7.30% 5,195 (379)  7.068% 3,151 222
- 181 to 36D days overdus T3.10% 5,003 2,723 H1.E6M% 18,418 {8,516)
- ower 350 days overdus §3.04% 723175 (B79.347) BA.35% TH9,281  (706,266)
Total trade recelvables
_{gross :tal'r‘jrll':y amount) 1,068,342 1,071,529
Cradit loss aliowancs {590, 600) {724,831
Total trade receivables
Troam contracts with
customers [carrying 68,742 o508
armount)
22, OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables are composed of the following:

31 December 2048 31 December 2048

Deferred expanses 20278 26,118
Sundry debtors 19,264 18,085
Prepayments for supplies 11,6567 B, 168
VAT receiablas 5874 51,826
Other Tax Recelvables 25687 12,866
Income tax receivables - B 535
Total othier raceivablos 59,771 122,766

Deferred expenses represent consumables andior prepaid expenses, which are deferred for 8 periad and

are expensed based on their respective consumplion rate.

a;
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cash on hand in domestic curmency 50 103
Cash on hand in foreign currency 473 H03
Cash at bank in domestic currency 165,078 13177
Cash al bank in foreign currency 643,830 BEE 13T
Todal cash and cash eguivalents B0 428 TGE, 920

The company's exposure ta interest rate risk and sansilivity analysis for financial assels and Babilities are
disclosed af note 30

24, SHARE CAPITAL

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Authorized, Faca Face
Izsved and fully  Number of Value in Number of Value in
paid shares % Holding  ALL' 000 shares % Holding  ALL" 000
ALVACIN lkd —
ordinary shares of
ALL 2 000 each 5,343,255 100% 10,686,510 4274604 BO% 8,545,200
IFC - ordinary
shares of ALL
2,000 each - - - 1,068,651 20% 2137302

5,341,265 100% 10,686,510 5,343,258 100% 10,686,610

On 19 December 2019 folowing the conclusion of the relevant agrearmend, Alvacim Bd acquired from IFC
the 20% sharehalding of IFC in the group thus bacoming 100% sharehalder of the group. The respective
changes were registered with the Share Register Canfre on 24 Doecember 2019 and with the Nalional
Business Cenire on 26 December 2019,

26, BORROWINGS

) Long-term borrowings

The Group has received kang-term loans from its shaseholders and financing institutions as Tollows;

31 Decamber 2018 31 December 2018

Borrowings fram Shareholders (Note 28e)

Alvacim Rd 11,182,303 9,180,325

Infernational Finance Corporation {IFC) - 2,331,580

11,182,303 11,611,906

Borrowdings from Fiancial inshitulions

Barka Hombelane Treglans - 281,250

Raiffeizen Bank 283,500 -

Alpha Bank 557,829 370,998

Defarred disbursamant feas 2,971} -
849,158 G52 248

Total non-currant borrowings 12,031,461 12,164,153
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256. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Al Long-berm bomrowings (continued)

Thecarrying amaunts of borrawings apprasimate their fair values since &l borrowings are priced al market
rates, Further information on e borowings from related parlias ! shareholders are disclozed in nofe 29

(&)
SOCIETE GENERAL ALBANIA - (OTP Bank Albania)

The Group has fully repald and sellled the loan oultstanding fram OTF Bank Albania (e Societe General
Bank Albania) for amount of ALL 290,912 thausand (2018: ALL 280 875 thausand)

The Group has fully repasd and sellled the lnan outstanding from BKT for amount of ALL 656,250 thousand
(2018 ALL 375,000 thousand).

RAFFEISEN BANK ALBANIA

Cn Blh of April 2019 the Group agreed a new Term Loan facility with Raiffelsen Bank Albanla (RBAL)
amounting o ALL 441,000 thousand wilh matusily up to 2023. The new credi facility is secured by a
Corporale Guarantes of Titan Cement Company S.A. This loan has been used fo refinance the axisting
bank debl of the Group. As al 31 December 2019 the loan has bean fully utiized,

A5 ab 3 December 2049 oulstanding principal amownts to ALL 409 500 thausand of which ALL 283 500
thoassand Long Term and ALL 126,000 thousand Shor Term (31 December 2018 ALL 330 548 thausand
composed of ALL 230,548 thousand as short term})

During the year the Group has paid the amount of ALL 330,548 thausand and fully setled the term loan
with RBAL that was maturing on Septamber 2012 as well as the amound of ALL 31,500 thousand as per
the agread repaymeant schedule of the mew faciiiby.

O 280 Jenuary 2018 the Group agreed with Raiffeizan Bank Albania o exend the maturily of the axaling
revalving loan facility for another 2 years unlil Februany 2021. As al 31 December 2019 the facility is not
ulilized and the available wn-uliized amount as ta 31 December 2019 & ALL 275,000 thousand (31
December 2018 the Bne was uiilized al the amount of ALL 97,375 thousand with the un-ulilized amount
amauniing af ALL 178 625 thousand) ),

iOn 18th of Apl 2018 the Group agreed with Raiffeisen Bank Albanda @ new credil facilily amaunting to
Eura 1,3 Malion with maturily up o 2027 to be utilized exchusively for the ssuance of Bank Guaraniea
andfor Letter of Credita. The facility has been secured by a Comporale Guaranies of Tilan Cemeant
Company 5 A, Az at 31 December 20018 is net utilized and fully available,

ALPHA BANF Al BANTA

On 7ih of March 2019 the Group agreed with Alpha Bank 1o extend the amaunt of the teem loan from the
amount of ALL 458,202 thousand culstanding &t 31 Dec 2018, 1o ALL 899,300 thousand. The new agreed
maturity of the facility s up to 2023, The addiflonal credit has beon used o refinance fhe existing bank
debt of the Group. As &l 31 December 2019 the loan has been fully uliiized.

Az at 31 December 2019 outstanding principal amounts to ALL 788 000 thousand of which ALL 887,820
thousand Long Term and ALL 230,261 thausand Short Term (31 December 2018; ALL 458,252 thousand
composed of ALL 370,958 thousand as long term and ALL 87 284 thousand as sharl tarm)

During the year e Group hes re-paid o Alpha Bank the amount of ALL 101,211 thousand as per the
agraad repayment aschedule.

w
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25, BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

a) Long-term borrowings {continuad)

On Tih of March 2019 the Group agreed with Alpha Bank to extend the maturity of the exisfing revolving
|oan faci@ity for another 3 years fram the signing date. As at 31 Decembar 2019 the facility is nok utilized
and the available un-utilized amount 8s at 31 Decomber 2018 is ALL 558,680 thaugand. (31 Decembar
2018 the line was utilizad at the amount of ALL 244,490 thouzand with the un-utilized aavount amuonting
gl ALL 314,190 thowsand).

Raoth faciities are secured by a Corporate Guaranbee from Titan Cement Company 5.4

The maturities of the long-term loans are as follows!

31 December 2019 31 Dacember 2018

Aftar one year bul nol more than two years 11,460,098 652,248
Afer two year bil not more than five years 550,465 11,511,906
Mare than five yaars = :
Total 12,031 481 12,164,153

o} Short - term borrowings

Shast term bormowings and short-term portions of lang-lerm borrowings are disclosed as follows.,

A1 December 2049 3 December 2048

I S
Alvacim Accruad Interest (Note 29a) 30,168 33,783
IFC Aceruad Intarast (Mole FHe) - B.451
Subtotal 30,168 42,234
i from risiiiutions
Societe General Bank - (TP Bank Albana) - 200,912
Barka Kombelare Treglare - 375,000
Raiffeisen Bank 126,000 330,548
Raiffeizen Bank Revolving Loan - 47,375
Alpha Bank Term Loan 230,261 87,204
Alpha Bank Revalving Loan - 244,490
Accrued Interest on Borrswings 4977 10,634
_ Deferred disbursament fee {1,664} {6,822)
Subioial 368,674 1,429,431
Total 0B, T42 1,471,666

Further informatian an (e borrowings from related parties / shareholders are disclosed in note 29(e).
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26, TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are non-interesi-bearing RBabilities with domestic and fareign suppliers and are normally
selled on a pericd ranging from 30 days to 80 days,

3 December 2019 31 December 2018

Trade creddoss third pariies GO0, 58 B 062
Accruals for supplies 5,850 0.R36
Total 606,858 704,809

27. OTHER PAYABLES

Olher payables are compased of the following balances.

3 December 2018 31 December 2008

Clients advance paymenis 81,708 91,877
Inzome tax payahle 32958 TTE7
Prowisions 17,760 16,346
Dther Laxes 13,467 16,376
Other payables B,739 Ba10
WAT payalola 0,521 .
Sockal securily 4,700 4 570
Payrall taxes 2,318 2,310
Due fo amployess 1,764 -
Total 173,018 214,789

Othar provisions relate to provisions for un-used days of vacation, other addifional persannel costs, as
well as other operalional tems. The movemants in the provisions are shown as follows:

3 December 2018 31 Decembear 2018

Balance at 1 January 16,348 52,471
Provigion for Un-Used Days of Vacations (Mole 1049) (258) (2,612)
Other Provisions {Nole 10V9) . (B3]
Prowision for Addiional Personnel Costs (Nole 10/8) 1682 1,816
Faorestation Provision (Node 10/9) - (165,140}
Additianal Provision for Operational Rigk (Nole 10/8) . {18,348)
Balance as at 31 Decembar 17,780 16,346
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2. EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE ON TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN OPERATIONS

During 2010, the Group establshed a fully owned subsidiary Cementi Antea Sil, which is operaling in
laly, Cemanti Antea Srl has EURO as ils funclional currency, however, in order to be consolidated with
Andea Group it must be converted into ALL, which is the Group's presentation and funclional cumency.
An amount of ALL (2, 101) thousand {31 December 2078 ALL (7,297} thousand) has resulted from the
trarslation and has been recognized under other comprehensive income.

29, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Graup le controlied by ALVACIM Lid which is in lrn a fully pwned subsidiary of Titan Cement
Intermnational S.A The Group cansiders as related parties all the group companies that are controllied by
Titan Cament Internstional 5.4

The following tables provide the lofal amount of transactions thal have been enterad with the related
pariies for the relevant financial year,

a) Sales of goods

2019 2018
TCKE MONTENEGRO 529,048 a0, 145
CEMENT PLUS 29,624 -
SHARRCEM (cther) 10,478 -
SHARRCEM (sakes of Clinker) 4,945 BE,553
TITAN CEMENT COMPANY SA 2,304 .
FIMTITAN - 144,440
CEMENTARICA USJE . 3,270
CEMENTARA KOSJERIC E 848
Total BTE, 406 1,016,801

The major transactions during the year are related with TCK Mantenegro for safes of. Outslanding
balances arising from the lransactions mentionad sbove are presentad below:

b} Recelvables from related parties

3 December 2018 31 December 2018

TCK MONTENEGRO 120,528 83,740
SHARRCEM 6,202 174,123
CEMEMT PLUS S =
Taoltal 126,136 257,863
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29, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [CONTINUED)

c} Purchases of goods and services

2019 2018
TITAM CEMENT COMPANY 54 - SERVICES 408,052 282 202
TITANM CEMENT COMPANY SA - GOODS 18,533 14,415
CEMENTARNICA USJE AD 13,105 -
ZLATNA PANEGA CEMENT 3,700 .
FINTITAN 1,218 1,234
TCK MOMTENEGRD - aa
Total 445,617 208,678

) Payables to related parfies

Ohatstanding halances arsing from the transactions mendionsd above anre presented hekow,

31 December 2018 31 Decamber 2018

TITAN CEMENT COMPANY SA 119,181 172,637
CEMENTARNICA USJE AD 13,054 :
ZLATNA PANEGA CEMENT 3,704 y
FINTITAM SRL 1,461 1,481
Total 137,400 174,118

8] Loans from related partiesishareholders

Long-Tern Borrowings

31 December 2018 31 December 2018

Aol Lid 11,182,303 9,180 325
IFC : 2,331,580
“Tatal 11,182,303 11,511,905

Dwiring 2008, the Group entered into several loan agreemants for a total amount of Eura 84 million {“the
Loan') 1o finance the construciion of a green field cement factory in Boka Kuge Borizane. Thene arg no
undrawn loan amounts ai 31 December 20119 and 31 Dacambar 2018, respactively,

dl



CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019
{Amounts in ALL thousand unfess olherwise stalad)

20, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

a) Loans from related partiesishareholders {comtinued)
The lnan agresments ara as follows:

INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION (IFC)

The IFC provided a loan amaunting to Eure 16.8 million in accordance with the Loan Agresment dated 20
Moyamber 2008, The lean bears intenest of Euribor + a Margin. Interest payment dales are 15 March and
15 September of sach year. The loan is repayable in 12 aqual annual instalments on 16 March in sach
year commencing on the date falling five (5) years after the first disbursemant of the loan and after the
agread condilions for repayment have been fulfilled. Tha further relations hatween the Company and e
lender are subject to the respective Faciiily Agreements.

ALVACTM LD (PARENT]

The parent company provided & kan amounting to Euro 50.4 milion in accordance with the Loan
Agreement dated 20 November 2008. The loan hears interast of Eurioor + Margin, Interast payment dates
are 15 March and 15 September of each year, The loan is repayable in 12 equal annal Instalments on
15 March In @ach year commencing on the date fafing five (5) years alter the firsl disbursemeant of tha
Inan and after the agreed conditions for repayment have been fulfifed. The further relations between the
Company and the lender are subject to the respeclive Facility Agresments.

F ollowing the acquisition of the EBRD's Share in the company, effectve on 20th of January 2015, Alvacim
Hd novated the shareholder loan provided by EBRD under the same terms and condiions.

Effective on 17 Decembar 2019 based on the Movalion Agresment agreed betwaen the pariies Alvacim
ild novated the loan of the Gompany with IFC in the amount of Euro 18,539 thousand. Al terme and
conditions of the Loan remain lhe same as per the previous contracts.

Dhwring 2019 the Group has repaid principal in the amoun of Eura 1,494 thousand or the equivalent of ALL
183,831 thousand (2048 the Group repaid principal in the amount of Eura 1,160 thousand ar the equivalend
of ALL 145 601 thousand)

According fo the Loan Facllity Agreement on 15th of March 2019 and 15th September 2019, tha Graup
paid (he accrusd nterest on Long term loans from ALVACIM, and IFC amounting ko Euro 2,011 thousand
or the equivalent of ALL 307 506 thousand, (2018: 15 March 2018 and 15 Seplember 2018, tha Group
defarred the accred intersest on Long term loans from ALVACIM and IFC amounting to Eurc 3,001
thousand or the aguivalent of ALL 381,328 thousand).

. i : :
31 December 2018 31 December 2018

Alvacim acorued Interest (nofe 26) 30,188 33783
IFC aeoreed Infarasl (nole 25) - #.451
Total a0, 168 42234
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an. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, and cash and short-lerm deposits. The
rmain purpose of these financial instruments |s b raise financing for the Group's operations. The Group
has various olther financial assels and liabifites such a3 trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly fram Its operations. Risk management is carred out under policies approved by the Board of
Directors,

The main risks arising from the Group's fmancial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and
credil sk Management reviews and agrees policies for managing oeach of (hese risks which are
summarised balow.

a) tnlerasf sk
The Group's axpaosure to the risk for changes in markel interes! rales relales pamarily 1o the Group's long-

term debt obligations with & flosfing interest rate. Al 31 December 20189 no interest rate swaps were
agreed, which makes 100% ol the Group's borrowings 1o be al a variable rale of interest.

31 December 2019 31 December 2048

Fixedd rate Instruments
Financial assets - -
Fimanclal Liahilties

Variahle rabe Instrumeants 12,564,823 13,635,618
Financkal assets
Financial Liahdiles 12 564,823 13,655,818

Cash low sensitivily analysis for variable rate instruments

The Group's Income and eperaling cash flows are substantially independent of changes on marke interest
rates. The affect el & change in interest rates on the Group's long-term debi might hawve on the Group's
rasulls is shown as follows:

The following table presents sensitivilies of profit and loss and aquity lo reasonably possible changes in
interast rates applied & the end of the reporting period, with all otiver variablas hald constant:

M December 2019 3 December 2018
Increasel Increasal
Decreasa Effect on Frofit Decreass Effect on Profit
I ALL'(00 in Basis/Point Before Tax in Basis/Point Bafore Tax
EURD 20 22 385 20 23,024
ALL 100 B492 100 6,522
EURD {20) (22,385) {20) (23,024)
ALL (100) (8,482 (100} [6,522)

b) Foraign exchange nsk

The Group enlers info transactions dencminaled in foreign currencies related to the sales of ils products
and purchase of fixed assets and trade goods from related parties. The Group does nol use any special
financial inglruments 1o hedge agamst these risks, since no such mstrumants are in comman use in the
Republic of Albania. Therefore, the Group ie potentially exposed to market risk retaled to possibla foreigh
currancy NuchEations,
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30, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

bt Foredgn exchange nsk (Gonlfmaed)

31 December H019

" In thowsands of Mongtary financial Monetary financial Met balance sheet
Albanian Lek assats liabilities position
Albanian Lek 217,138 (1,636,127) (1.418,8908)
Euro 1,123,939 {11,852,152) {10,728,213)
LIS 22,984 4, 766) 18,234
Total 1,364,077 (13,493 0:44) [12,128,967)

31 December 2018 =
in thousamnds of Monetary financial Monetary financial Mel balance sheet
Altranian Lok assels liabilitios position
Albanian Lek 103,863 (2622613 {2,428 750)
Eura 1,142,060 {12,102, 225) (10,960,165}
usD 150,324 (4, 765) 145,559
Total 1,486,247 {14,729 603) (13,243 356)
The following significant exchange rates applied during the yvear:
ALL Reporting date spol rate Average rate
2019 2018 2019 2018
ELR/MALL 12197 12342 123.02 127 36

The Group's main exposure i boward Euro as such a change of +/- 5% in exchange rafe of Euro fo ALL
&l the reporting date woukd have increasedi{decreased) equity and profit by ALL 538,411 thousand for the
group and AL 540,332 thousand for the company (2018 ALL 548004 thousand lor the Group and ALL

562 586 thousand for the company),
) Lipuichily risk

Prudent liquidity risk management imples maintaining enough cash and availabiily of funds thraugh an

adeguate amoum of commilled credit facibting.

The table below summanses the malurily profile of the Group's financial lishilifies 81 31 December 2019
and 2018, based on confractual undiscounted payments,
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUELD)

o) Ligurichly risk fooninued)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (in 000 ALL)

On  Less than Jlo12 Tios  More than
demand 3 manths months years § years Total
Long-em
haroeings - - 12058547 - 12,058,547
Shori-term
boreowings - 8L 457,203 - 528,160
Trade and other
payables and
leages - 758 007 205,718 50,608 47 562 1,081,893
Year ended 31 December 2018 (in 000 ALL)
on Less Jto12 1to 5 Ml Total
demand  than 3 manths years than &
months years
Long-tarm borrawings - - 12,388,960 12,388,960
Short-term borrowings 522 797 1,099.058 - - 1,621,865
Trade and other payables 906,977 166,808 - - 1,093,785
o) Creo fsk

The Group has no significant concenlrations of credd risk. The Group has polcies in place 1o ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit histary. The Group has policies that
lirmit the armount of credi exposure to any one customes, In addition. to reduce (his risk the Group has
required as collateral; bank guaranties and deposile. Recognisable risks are accountad for by adeguale

provisians on recelvabies,

Wilh respect to credi risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cath and
cash equivalents and oiher financial assels (nen-cument), the Group’s exposurs 1o credit sk arses from
defaull of the counterparty, wilh a maximurm exposure agual to the casrying amount of these instruments.

3 December 2048 31 December 20718

Trads and olher recelvables (refer to notes 21, 22) 428,513 450 464
Cash and cash aguivalenls (reler (o note 23) BOO. 428 TEE, 920
1,237 941 1,226,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounis in ALL thousand unless olherwise staled)

3. FAIRVALUES

The fair values of curment assets and curnent liabilties approximate thair carrying vadue due to their short-
tarm nature, The falr value of non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings also approxdimate their
carrying value due to variable inferest rafe on the loans.,

Sat out as a comparson by class of the carrying amounte and fair value of the Group's financial
inatruments thal are canied in the consolidaled inancial statemants.

in ALL'0O0 Carrying amount Fair Value

31 December 31 December 31 Decembar 31 Dacember
Financial assals 2019 2018 2018 2018
C-ash and banks 00 428 ThE 220 Bia 428 THE 020
Trade recaivables 358 747 346 5404 a0 742 345,658
Ralated partas 126,136 257,663 146,136 257 863
her receivables L3l | 122, 766 50,7 122,765
Tatal 4,364,077 4,486,247 1,384,077 1,456,247
iin ALL'DOO Carrying amount Fair Value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Docember
Financial Liabilities 208 2018 2019 2018
Trade accounts payakble G006, 858 T &08 G0E 858 o4 BOE
Refated parties 137 400 174,118 137,400 174,118
Bank loamfshor:term loans 388,742 1,471,665 3488 T42 1,471,665
Lease Liabilily 144 620 - 144,620 -
Other payablas 173,06 g 173,015 214 768
Leng-term debts 12,031 481 12,164,153 12,021,484 12,164,153
Total 13,482 096 14,729,603 13,482,006 14,729,603

The fair value of the financial assets and Eabilities are included at the amount at which the instrumen
could be exchanged in a current transaciion between willing parties, other than in a forced of liquidation
senhiz,

The fellowing methods and assumplions were used lo estimate the fair values:

. Cash and shartderm deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other cument liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely dug to the sher-term maturities of these instruments.
. Lang-term fixed-rate and varable-rabe recefvables / borrowings are evaluated by the Group basad

on parameters such as intarest rabes, specific country risk factors, and Individual creditworthiness of the
cusiomer and the risk charactaristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are
taken o accounl Tor the expected losses of these receivables. As al 31 Decamber 2018, the carrying
amounts of such receivables / borrowings, nel of allowances, are nol materally different from their
calculatad fair values.

Fair Value Hieranchy

As the fair value of the group financlal assets end liabilities approximales it's carrying value amd mo
valuation lechnigues ara applied in order to determine Lhe fair vaiug of Group's financial netruments.
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32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objeclive of the Group's capilal management 15 1o ensure hat it maintains & strong credit
rating and heallhy capital ratios in ordar to support 15 business and maximise shareholder value,

The Group manages s capital strusiure and adjusts i, considaring changes i aconemds conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Group may adjus! the dividend payment to shareholders, return
cap#al to shareholders or issue new shares, following shargholders' approval. Mo changes were made in
thir objeclives, palicies or processes during the years ended 31 Decernber 2019 and 2018,

The Group monibors #s econemic performance wsing eamings befare interest, tex, depreciafion and
amodization (EBITDWA) for the year to be caloulated a6 follows:

31 December 2012 31 Decamber 2018

Operating profit 58,850 445, 526
Depracialion and amorization §59.527 371,447
EBITDA 1,818,377 1.3 T 873

The Group & not subject to any sxtemally imposed capilal requiremeants. The structure and managemeant
of debt capital is determined at TITAN Group lsvel.

a3, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
a. Commitmenis

Af 31 Decamber 2019 the Groap has the following outstanding commiiments, related to leases:

1 December 2018 3 December 2008

Mo Later than 1 Year . Bd,306
Later than ona but not latar than five years : 1,020
More than § vears - 61,274

245,600

Commilments relale io operalional leases for vehicles, terminals and plots of lands wsed by the Group in
course of ils business.
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CONSOLIDATED ANTEA CEMENT SH.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 20148
(Amounts in ALL thousand unlass otherwise stated)

33, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED]

On adoplion of IFRE 16, the Group recognized lease liahilitles in relation to leases which had previousty
been clagaified as 'operating leases' under the principles of |AS 17 Leases. These liabilties wers
measured at the presant value of the remaining lease payments, discountad using the lesses’s incremental
borrowing rale gs of 1 January 2018, The weighled averags lesses's incremental borrowing rate appliad
to the beaza liabifies on 1# of Janiay 2009 was 3 75%.

- 2018
Opersting lease commilments disclosed on 31.12.2018 246,600
A: Discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate (IBR) on © 193,582
1.1.2014

B: {Less): shar-lerm leases recognized on 1.1.2019 as exdpenses on a 5, 0a3)
siraight-line basis

C: Add/bass): Other adusiments {4,213)
Lease liability recognized on 1.4.2018 (A-B-C) 184,176
Cf which are:

Currant lease Rabiities 53,985
Mon-current lease liabilities 130,181

The assockted right-of-use aseets for properly leases were measured on a retrospective basis as if the
nenw rules had always been applied, Other right-of use assels were maasured at the amount egual to the
lease Eability, adjusted by the amount of any prepald or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognized in the batance sheet as st 31 Decomber 2018. There were no onerous lease contrecls that
would have reguired an adjustment to the right-of-use assets al the date of initial recognition,

b Taxation

The Group's uncertain tax posilions ane reassessed by managemant at the end of each reparting period,
Lishilities are recorded for income 1ax posilions that are determined by management as more fikely than
nod to result in additional texes baing kvied Il the positions were o be challenged by the ta authorilies.
The assessmeanl is based on the inferpretation of tax laws that have been enaclted or substantively anacted
by the end of the reparting pariod, and any known court or ather rulings on such issues. Liabiithes fof
penalties, interes! and laxes other than on income are recognized based on managemeant’s best estimate
of the expendilure requirad to sellle the obligations &t the end of the reporing period.

., Litigations

The Group ie imvohsad in dilferent Migations in course of s business activities. Tha malaerial litigation the
Group is involved is as follows:

At 31 December 2019, the Group was invelved in litigation proceedings a5 a defendant with a thind-party
raiging claim in refation o the costs of an entry road utilized by the Group, constructed in 2010, The case
wias bodged in front of the District Court of Kruja which fuled 1o parlislly accept the claim. The total amount
of ligbdities 1o be paid by the Group ameounted 1o ALL 68,000 thousand. The Group appeated the decision
in frond of the Tirana Appeal Court which during 2047 dismissed the Judgement of the Kruja Disirict Court
and ruled for a naw Lrial o the Knga District Court.  Against this judgerment the Group filed an appeal to
Supremea Court. Based an ils own estimales and both external lagal advice, management is of ihe opinion
that no materal losses will be incurred in respect of this claim and accondingly no provision has been
hooked In these conaolidated financial statements,
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

The Group has pardicipation in the following subsidiares, which are fully consolidated In these
consolidated financial slalements. The Group has no pardicipation in associates and foin-venture.

Parcantage
Porcentage of of Country of
Name Nature of business voling rights  ownership  registration
Subsidiaries:
Alba Comenta Shpk Cemest Handling Terminal 100% 1005 Albxanka
Camentl Antea SEL  Cement Handling Terminal 100% 1 ILaly

316, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Late in 2019 news first emerged from China about COVID — 18 {Coronanirus). The situation al year end
was thal a limited number of cases of an unknown virue had been reported to the WHO. In the first few
months of 20200 the vings had spread globally, and #s negaliva impacl has gained moomenlem,
Management considars this outbreak to be a non-adjesting post balancs sheel event. While this is still an
avolving situation a1 the time of Bsuing thase financial statements, Lo data hare has besn no dscennibe
Impact of the Cansolidated Antea’s regular business operations, however the fulure effects cannot be
predicted. Management will continue to manitor the potential impact and will take al sleps possible to
initigate any effects. It should be emphasized that he Consoldaled Amea has rolled out its business
continuity plans and has taken precaulionary measures to keep s people heallhy, 1o ensure that the
workplace is safe and lo preserve cash. The Consolidated Anlea has a strong balance sheet and ample
liquidity of immediate cash availabiMy, In response to the changed business context, the Consolidated
Antea is also delaying certain capiial expenditures programs and will continue to respond as recuired.

There are ne other evenis after the reporting date that would require adustments or additional discloaurs
in ihese financial slatemenls

36. ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR LEASES BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2019

Mgeounting policies appiicable to the comparatve penod ended 31 December 2018 that ware amanded
by IFRS 18, Leasos, are as follows

Operating leases. Whera the Group s a lessee In a lease which does not ransfier substantialfly all the
risks and rewards Incidental to ownership from the lessor to the Group, the tolal lease payments are
charged to profit or loss for the year on a straighl-line basis over the lease term. The leage term is the non-
cancellable period far which the lessees has confracted to lease the assel together with any further terms
for which the lessee has the aplion lo conlinug to lease the assal, with or withoul furthes payment, when
al the inception of the lease it is reasonably cerlain that the lessee will exercise the oplion,

When assels are leased oul under an operating lease, the lease payments receivable are recognised as
rental income on a straight-line basis ovar the lease tarm,

Finance leaso abiiies. Whare the Group is a lessee in a tease which transfermed substantially all the
risks and rewards incidantal to ownership to the Group, the assets keased are capitalised in property. plant
and equipiment al the commencament of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the mininwm lease payments. Each leasa paymant is allocated batwesan (he &bty
and finance charges o achieve a constant rata on the Enance balance oulatanding, The comesponding
rental abligations, net of fulure finance charges, are included in borrowings. The inlerast cost is charged
o prafi or loss over fhe lease period using the effective interest method, The assets acquired under
financo loases are depreciated overtheir usaful life or tha shorter laase barm, I the Group is not reasonably
certain that it will cbiain ownership by the end of the lease term.
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